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blished as a market designed to accommodate
ich a high investment risk may be attached. In
panies may list on GEM with neither a track record of
-I profitability nor any obligation to forecast future profitability. Further:
more, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of com-
panies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in which
the companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware of
the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
i the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The

market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
fraded on GEM.

fion on the internet website operated by the Stock Exchange. Listed
companies are not generally required to issue paid announcements
in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should
note that they need to have access to the GEM website in order to
obtain up-to-date informatfion on GEM-listed issuers.
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greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publico—
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— Establishment of the Group
- REEKT

— Development of technologies and applications
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— Launched hardware products for smartcard system under the tfrademark of
“HOMAC"

— Awarded with important smartcard and RFID projects in Hong Kong
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- RE-TETHEB LR

-!
-
- iFe
v —

— Listing on The Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

— Establishment of wholly owned PRC subsidiary: ITE (China) Limited in Shanghai

— Winning of 2001 HK Industry Award

— Acquisition of leading IT System Integrator, Quesco Holdings Limited and Quesco
Systems Limited on 7th December 2001
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— Accreditation of ISO 92001:2000 Quality Assurance System

— Launched new ISO15693 product series and solutions

— Patent filing of ISO15693 based Smart Key Management System (SKMS) accepted
by the State Intellectual Property Office of the People's Republic of China

- Awarded with the first ISO15693 Smartlabel project in Hong Kong

- Strategic Business Agreement signed with Shanghai Public Traffic Card
Company Limited (SPTCC) for the provision of value-added solutions and
services to its user community

— Enfered into distributor agreement with Texas Instruments for marketing, sales
and support of ifs product ranges

— Became the sub-issuer of MULTOS

— Receiving of Caring Company Award
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Start geographical expansion info Macau
Appointed as an international channel partner of Transcore, LP

Patent filing of Automated Passenger Management System (APMS) accepted

by the State Intellectual Property Office of the People's Republic of China
Accredited as one of the fastest growing technology companies by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu in the “2003 Asia Pacific Technology Fast 500"
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Successfully completed the ISO 9001:2000 Quality Assurance System Audit
Awarded the Caring Company by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
BX T FEAXISO 9001: 20000 B E % E & E 18 XA RE
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Contract award of the Macau SAR Customers Services “Automated Vehicle
Clearance System” & Public Security Forces Affairs Bureau “Automated
Passenger Clearance System”

QSL passed the ISO 9001:2000 Quality Assurance System

Successfully completed the Hong Kong Marathon 2005

Joined "Give Blood Give Live" — Blood Donation Day for the Hong Kong Red
Cross Blood Transfusion service
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S Corporate Structure

Rax-Comm (BVI) Ltd

l 50.27%

ITE (Holdings) Ltd

Investment Holding

BREZER
100%
ITE (BVI) Ltd
Investment Holding
REZER
100%
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ITE Smartcard Solutions ITE (Macau) Limited

Limited piez g% (3 AT
SR A B T BERL (R ARA

Solutions Provider Macau Operation Arm
fORT5 R IER RFI D AA]

100%

ITE Engineering Limited

Control & Automation
Engineering
ZEHRBEHITRE

ITE Investment Limited

Investment
RE

RF Tech Limited

RFID, Design Manufacturing
SfsERL B ~ RRET AR

Rainbow Spirit Limited

Services Provider
PR (L FERS

ITE (China) Limited
Egp 3 4
Global Confidence BERERGERRAE
Limited
China Operation Arm
FE DA E

100%

Quesco Holdings Limited

ERIEE
Capital Ledger ERAERAT
Limited ]
Investment Holding
REZRKR
100% 100% W
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Quesco Information
Services Ltd

ERIEARTES
BRAE
IT Services Provider
ERRHER

Quesco Systems Ltd

PR R GRA R
BRAF

IT Consulting Service
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Group Results AEBHEE
N 2005 2004
[— p— — =3
Year Ended 31 March HE=ZA=1+—RHLLFE [ [E———
HK$'000 HK$’000
FH&T FHET
Turnover - 48,470 61,843
Loss from ordinary activities IR ot =
before taxation (15,609) (12,038)
Taxation 1| - -
Loss attributable to shareholders % R (L E5 1R (15,609) (12,038)
Dividends e - -
Loss Per Share BREE
N 2005 2004
[N— p— — =3
Year Ended 31 March HE=ZA=1+—RHLLFE [—— [E——
cents cents
I gl
Basic BN (1.72) (1.33)
Diluted #a N/A T N/A i@ A

Loss per share

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss attributable to
shareholders of HK$15,609,352 (2004: HK$12,038,430) and the weighted
average of 907,536,000 ordinary shares (2004: 907,536,000 shares) in
issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share

No diluted loss per share is presented for the year as there were no dilutive

potential ordinary shares in existence during the year.

FRREANEE TR R FE (5 /E51815,609,3528 T (T
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S Chairman’s Statement =E#H &

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of Directors (the “Directors”), | hereby
present the annual results for ITE (Holdings) Limited (“ITE” or the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2005.

Mission

The mission of the Group is to become the leading smartcard and radio
frequency identification (“RFID”) solution provider and system integrator in
the Asia Pacific region. ITE has been pioneering smartcard system solutions
and integration and has been performing outstandingly in Hong Kong. With
profound expertise, strong research and development (“R&D”) capability,
proven track record and excellent reputation in the industry, the Group has
established a leading profile in the smartcard industry in Hong Kong and
has taken a proactive approach to introduce innovative and customised
smartcard and RFID applications to its clients. Leveraging on its extensive
industry experience, ITE is developing smartcard and RFID solutions for
clients from many industries and expanding its business activities to the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and other countries in the Asia
Pacific region.

“ITE is selected as one of 20 outstanding Hong
Kong software enterprises ... and continuously
strives to ensure superior service delivery to client

organisations by constantly enhancing its service

quality and availability.”

Overview

To promote success cases of Hong Kong software enterprises, the HKSAR
Government, Office of the Government Chief Information Officer, has
commissioned the Software Industry Information Centre (SIIC) of the Hong
Kong Productivity Council to compile a reference book entitled “Excellence
of Hong Kong Software Enterprises 2004”. A vetting committee comprising
industry experts have been formed to identify, approach and request case
studies from a benchmark quantity of the top 20 software enterprises in
Hong Kong.
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Chairman’s Statement. =E #H &

“ ITE takes part in.the visits:and

events organized by the Hong Kong

Council of Social Servicé to help and
support the lesser well off families and
individuals or groups.in our
community..””

ITE is pleased to be selected as one of the 20 Outstanding Hong Kong
Software Enterprises. The Group shall continuously strive to ensure superior
service delivery to our clients by constantly enhancing our service quality
and availability.

ITE is also pleased to receive for the third consequent year the Caring
Company 2005 Award from the Hong Kong Council of Social Service for
our good corporate citizenship which the Group shall continue to practice
actively.

Appreciation
| would like to take this opportunity to express my deepest thanks to my

directors, management and staff for their dedication and hard work, and
shareholders, financiers and business partners for their continual support.

Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 June 2005
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8 Management Discussion and Analysis E 12 E &t s & 2 #7

Management of the Group has continued to utilise our professional and
committed workforce and financial resources to achieve maximum return

to our shareholders.

Business review

Sales and marketing activities

The Directors are pleased to announce that following the recent contracts
award of the Automated Vehicle Clearance System (“AVCS”) and the
Automated Passenger Clearance System (“APCS”) by the Customs and
Public Security Forces Affairs Bureau (“DSFSM”) of Macau Special
Administrative Region (the “Macau SAR”), our subsidiaries Quesco Systems
Limited (“QSL”) together with ITE Smartcard Solutions Limited (“ITES”)
have secured another mission critical smartcard project for the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (the “HKSAR”) — the Computerized Registration
Management System of the newly formed Construction Workers Registration
Authority. This project is one of the largest scale card personalization and
management system of the Government of the HKSAR after the Smart ID
Card project. The system includes a new backend information technology
infrastructure, personalization machines, workflow and related application
software and more than 100,000 pieces of contactless smartcards with

security printing features to be issued.

During the year, ITES secured another important contract from a new client
department of the Government of the HKSAR to design, develop, supply
and install a card personalization and image identification reader system.
More than 10,000 pieces of 4K memory contactless smartcard will be
personalized and issued with over 100 reader stations to be installed at

sites across the territory.

All of these projects are to be started and completed in the fiscal year of
2006, and revenues to be booked starting in the first quarter of fiscal year
of 2006. While delivering these projects, ITES has continued to market our
solutions and services to various government departments, public and private
organizations, it is expected that a number of new contracts will be awarded
in the next quarter, and the speed of establishing new clients and contracts

from Macau SAR will increase.

Within the campus and real estates market, ITES and our China subsidiary,
BRI Z AR AR (ITEC”) have been awarded with new contracts
from old and new clients in HKSAR, Macau SAR and Shanghai. ITEC has
successfully completed the first Shanghai Traffic Card parking payment

solution, and is actively promoting and developing the market in Shanghai.

ANNUAL REPORT 2005 4F % ITE (Holdings) Limited | MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & 2 [ & # & 2 7

AEEZEEASBEEERND  KFEETZANRIK
BR - RERAZRSZER

e E)
B RIS RS

EE=MAEMAEKDETURFIS BT R/ERE [ E B
B FS R A RRLEHREE R IRE B8 BB AS A
Bi%  AARNMEMBAR - R RGBEEARAR (7
MERD) REERGARAR ([BEASDEFAE - I
RN S —THARERERAGHEIRE - ZBEERE
R RIT TR BB AT AR AR SO FE SR T AGEM &R et
ERCEMERRL - BREEEARTEEES (NER
RELR - A—AREEECERRERRZSER - HE
BIRGT RUER AR a EARMES - B REEEHT
ENt% - EERZEREREG BB TERSREREH
R I B E R

FA - BEAGKNFREBFINTREBTE T —EE
BEPIRIES - S%EPIRET - FE - 1B - ZRER
NEGZEE R R - AIFHEE — 8 RAKRLIB R IE
ERAS R REERRE  YREBERRLZEBB—A
fEE =5

A ETEIBEEEBRF - WEER T FMHEE
TR - WAKR —FTRNFHRFE —FEFRARER - 52
SERIES - IR R GBI SRR Ty 2 N RS BT
Fl - AHEBRILALE - BEA T —FESREZHH
BERERAK X2 HMEFMRPINS - HEFP AKX
MEEKESREE -

REREETSIH @ BEERGRARRRPEOMBEL
8 DEFUREERGERAR ([ LMK - 25l
EEE  RPIR DEREZEN  ERPHNIREEH - £
RSB BN A BB AR R AR RN —
REEEETRE  YEEZNAR LETS -



Management Discussion and Analysis

Extensive marketing activities for the automated passenger management
system have been conducted, ITES has tendered and offered for a number
of bids across the world included a sizeable one in the Middle East. The
result should be announced in the next quarter. Through our strong commercial
partnership with industry players, it is expected that a new overseas market

will be established in the very near future.

During the year, our subsidiary, Quesco Systems Limited (“QSL"), has
continued to excel in the staffing and recruitment sectors in Hong Kong
and participated in the tendering of the new T21 contract for the Provision
of Information Technology Contract Staff Services issued by the Government
of the HKSAR, the tender assessment interview was smoothly completed,
the result of the tender should be released in the next quarter. Besides
T21, QSL also participated in a number of contract bids and managed to

secure new clients.

Research and development

It has been a very busy year for the Group’s R&D activities. Our product
arm RF Tech Limited (‘RFT”) has continued to design and develop a number
of new products and solutions in supporting the needs and requirements
coming from the automated vehicle, passage, e-purse, Electronic Product

Code (“EPC”) and card management systems.

The R&D activities cover not only the related hardware and software, but
also outlook and workflow design. Our efforts have resulted in the filing of
a number of patents in relation to the automated passenger clearance system

in the PRC, Hong Kong and Macau.

Besides our internal R&D activities, we have entered into two sponsorship
programs with the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
(“HKUST’) and the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in supporting the
development of ‘Low-Cost Multiple-Standard Single-Chip UHF RFID
Readers/Tags’ and ‘Advanced Textiles and Garment Manufacturing Process
Technology Using RFID’ respectively. The R&D projects are under the
matching funding from the Guangdong-HK Technology Cooperation Funding
Scheme of the Innovation and Technology Commission and the new Textile
and Clothing R&D Center of the HKSAR.

The Group has continued to form commercial and technology alliances
with new overseas partners to access to the latest technologies and business
requirements. The Directors aim to push forward the development and
management of our intellectual property rights, knowledge and experiences,
and we trust that those value will ultimately be appreciated by the market
and clients, and reflected in our stronger business revenue streams and

margins.
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S Management Discussion and Analysis & I2 8 5 ##

Governance and social responsibility

During the year, the Group has continued to participate in serving the
community with our staff actively involved in social services. The Hong
Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service held a Blood Donation drive in
March 2005 at our headquarter in the Grand Century Place. Many
management team members and employees of the Group participated in
the drive by donating their blood to this valuable and highly important cause.
The blood donation process was very well organized and executed, leaving
all with the satisfied feeling of having contributed more than just their hard
work, time and effort to the Hong Kong community. Along with this blood
donation event, our staffs have also joined a number of charity fund raising

campaigns.

Aiming to offer training and career opportunities to the youth, the Group
has continued to provide for the workplace attachment training organized
by the Labour Department under the Youth Pre-employment Training
Programme and the Business Internship Practice Scheme of the local

universities.
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BT DFRETEER KBS - AEBZFR—
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EEEEE -

The Group establishes as a corporate social responsibility to make Hong
Kong a better place for all, and shall continue our support for worthy initiatives.
ITE is also committed to maintain high standards and solid framework of
corporate governance through the on-going establishment of best practices
and policies. We shall comply throughout the year with the best practice
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Future prospect

The Group has reported financial losses for the past three years. During
those periods, the Group has been tackling the effects of local economy
downfall and changes in business environment and practices while at the
same time investing extensive resources in corporate restructure, marketing,
research and development with the aim to build up sustainable business
and operation models for long term interests of the Group. The Directors
strongly believe that the strategies are correct and the results are coming
into effect as will be reflected in the fiscal year of 2006. Besides, our stronger
market position is creating new opportunities to expand to overseas
marketplaces. We expect the financial performance will continue to be

improved.
Financial performance

For the year ended 31 March 2005, the Group recorded a total revenue of
approximately HK$48 million, representing a decrease of 22% over last
year. Loss attributable to the shareholders for the year ended 31 March

2005 was approximately HK$16 million as compared to a loss of approximately

EEENWED N
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BHE-_ZTAF A=+ HILFE  AEEHSRKRALY
£48,000,000/87C © BIAFEEATEK22% - HE-TTH
F=A=T—BILFEZIRRELEEX7316,000,000/%
JC + HEE R4 R AR5 518 494512,000,0004 7T ©

HK$12 million for the last year.
Turnover breakdown by main business segments REEHETEE| D 2 &SRR

1%
2%

s 2003/04
72% Consultancy fee
21% EEER
21% Smartcard systems, RFID and information technology services
BRERELE - SIIEMR KB AR RS
4% Provision of maintenance services
RHRE RS
2% Sales of service related products
HERBIEEER
2% 1% Electrical and mechanical installation
WELETE
o 4%
% 2004/05
1% 80% Consultancy fee
k-3
1% Smartcard systems, RFID and information technology services
BRERFL - GI5ERR K EARHR RS
5% Provision of maintenance services
RUHRE RS
4% Sales of service related products
HERBIEEER
80% 0% Electrical and mechanical installation
BLRTIE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 & & &% 52 2 47 | ANNUAL REPORT 2005 4% ITE (Holdings) Limited
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Segmental information

During the year, the Group recorded a drop in turnover for about 22% when
compared with last year. The Group’s gross profit margin was decreased

for about 21% from 14.74% in last year to 11.59% in current year.

During the year, the Group continued to concentrate its resources on its
core business development, i.e. to provide the smartcard and RFID systems
and information technology services. The significant drop in turnover was
mainly due to the stringent credit evaluations of the financial condition of
the customers resulting in slow business and less active in some low-end
low-margin application markets. The Group was very cautious of bidding
contracts from new customers, especially those involving high bidding budget
and long tendering process. At the same time, a full provision was made
on all those qualified contracts signed in previous years. Besides, within
the campus market, the turnover also dropped for the reason of continual

budget cutting by the government of the HKSAR.

Furthermore, as mentioned in previous section, the Group had much R&D
activities during the year. Much effort had been placed in R&D investments.
As at 31 March 2005, the headcount of R&D department has increased to
8 (as at 31 March 2004: 5) and the R&D department has already increased
its headcount to 11 as at to date. Hence, the Company’s policy is to direct
write off the R&D cost to the Income Statement. However, the Directors
strongly believe that such R&D investment will enhance Company’s long-

term business development and shareholders’ worth ultimately.

For consultancy service segment, the turnover had been dropped for about
13% when compared with last year. The decrease is mainly due to the
greater demand in IT professionals in the market upon economy recovery
during the year. This results in higher staff turnover rate and lower profit

margin for higher IT staff cost.

For electrical and mechanical engineering segment, with the higher risk on
receivables, lower gross profit margin and longer credit period, the Group
aims to slow down this segment purposely. During the year, cost amounted
to around HK$700,000 still had to be incurred in concluding the remaining
contracts. Excluding this additional cost incurred in this segment, the revised
overall gross profit margin would be 13.07% which is only 11% drop when
compared with last year. However, all the related contracts in hand were
fully completed and there would be no longer related cost to be incurred in

the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group’s other operating expenses increased approximately 10%. The
increase was mainly attributable to the impairment loss on goodwill amounted
to HK$6,338,616. Excluded the said impairment loss on goodwill, the other
operating expenses would only be HK$6,626,413 which represented a
significant drop of 44% when compared with that of last year. With our
continual cost restructure and stringent cost control, our overall general

and administrative expenses decreased during the year.

Liquidity, financial resources and treasury
policies

The Group generally financed its operations with its internally generated
cash flows and bank borrowings. As at 31 March 2005, the Group had
outstanding borrowings of HK$9,296,579, comprising short-term loans of
HK$5,399,823, bank overdrafts of HK$3,480,126 and installment loan of
HK$416,630. At 31 March 2005, the current ratio of the Group was 1.23
(2004: 1.58) while the liquidity ratio was 1.13 (2004: 1.46).

The Group continues to adopt a conservative approach towards its treasury
policy. The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing
ongoing credit evaluations of the financial condition of its customers. Besides,

the Group’s liquidity and financing arrangements are also reviewed regularly.
Taking into consideration the banking facilities granted, stringent cost control
and the existing financial resources available to the Group, it is believed

that the Group should have adequate financial resources to meet its operation,

development requirements and investments in the future.
Significant investments
The Group had no significant investments during the year under review.

Material acquisitions or disposal of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies

During the year under review, the Group had no material acquisitions and

disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies.
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Employment information

The Group recognises that its staff is one of the Group’s most important
assets. Aiming at providing competitive salary packages, the Group adjusts
employees’ salary level in close association with the performance,
qualifications and experience of individual staff as well as labour market
conditions. In addition to the regular remuneration, discretionary bonus and
share options may be awarded to eligible employees with reference to

individual performance and the Group’s business performance.

The Group enjoys good relations with staff and has not experienced any
disruption of operations due to major labour disputes. In addition to the
remuneration as mentioned above, the Group also provides fringe benefits
which comply with the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC and Hong
Kong including contributions to society security scheme of the PRC and
contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme of Hong Kong. Besides,
the Group also provides on-going training programmes for its employees

to keep them abreast of the latest market trends and new technologies.

At 31 March 2005, the Group had 160 full-time employees (2004: 171 full-
time employees), of which 145 are based in Hong Kong and the rest are in
the PRC. Staff cost, including directors’ emoluments, was approximately
HK$47 million for the year ended 31 March 2005 (2004: approximately
HK$56 million). During the year, the Company has not granted any share

option to any of its Directors and employees.

Charges on group assets

At 31 March 2005, time deposits of HK$13,594,808 (2004: HK$13,584,923)
were pledged to banks to secure certain banking facilities of the Group.
Future plans for material investments

The Group did not have any plans for material investment and acquisition

of material capital assets as at 31 March 2005.
Gearing ratio
At 31 March 2005, the gearing ratio of the Group, which is calculated as

the ratio of total secured bank loans due after one year to shareholders’
funds, was nil (2004: 0.02).
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates
and related hedges

The Group’s assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The exchange rate between
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi has been very steady for the past few
years. During the year, the Group generally used the receipts from customers
and bank loans to pay its suppliers and meet its capital requirements. There
are denominated in the local currency of the place in which the subsidiaries
operate. The Group does not currently engage in hedging to manage possible
exchange rate risk as the Group considers the cost associated with such
hedging arrangements would exceed the benefits. However, management
will continue to monitor the possible exposure to exchange rate risk and

will take such measures as it deems prudent.

Contingent liability

At 31 March 2005, the Company has undertaken to guarantee certain banking
facilities granted to two wholly-owned subsidiaries to the extent of HK$15.6

million (2004: HK$18.5 million).

At 31 March 2005, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities
(2004: HK$NIl).
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2 Profiles of Directors and Senior Management EE R SR EEEEF

Directors

Executive directors

Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent, aged 41, is an Executive Director, Chief
Executive Officer and one of the founders of the Group. He is responsible
for overall strategic planning and management of the Group. With over 18
years of experience in the executive management, Mr. Lau was engaged
in China trade before founding the Group. He graduated from The University
of Hong Kong with a first class honours Degree of Bachelor of Science in

Mechanical Engineering.

Mr. George Roger Manho, aged 42, is an Executive Director, Chief Operating
Officer and one of the founders of the Group. He is responsible for marketing
and project management of the Group. Mr. Manho has 17 years of experience
in the control and automation industries, electrical and mechanical projects
and engineering management. He is a Chartered Engineer and a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Engineers, The Institute of Marine Engineers
and The Hong Kong Institute of Marine Technology and the Institution of
Fire Engineers. He holds a Master degree in Engineering Studies in
Mechanical Engineering from the University of Sydney and a Bachelor of
Science (Engineering) degree with first class honours in Marine Engineering

from the University of Newcastle Upon Tyne.

Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung, aged 42, is an Executive Director, Chief Technology
Officer and one of the founders of the Group. He is responsible for technical
management and research and development (R&D). With 21 years of
experience in R&D and production management, Mr. Cheng won the product
design award of the Hong Kong Awards for Industry for five times (one
product design in each of 1993, 2000 and 2001 and two designs in 1997).
He holds a Higher Diploma in Electronics Engineering from the Hong Kong

Polytechnic.

Mr. Liu Hoi Wah, aged 36, is an executive and Chief Finance Officer of
the Group. He is responsible for financial management, accounting and
corporate development. He joined the Group in March 2000 and has 14
years of experience in auditing and corporate finance, Mr. Liu was a financial
controller of a private group. He graduated from The London School of
Economics and Political Science of the University of London with a Bachelor
of Science degree, first class honours in Management Sciences. He is an
associate member of each of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. Mr. Liu is the younger
brother of Mr. H.K. Lau.
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Independent non-executive directors

Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen, CBE, BS, FHKIE, JP, aged 65, holds an honorary
doctoral degree in engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and an honorary doctoral in laws from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
He was formerly a member of the Hong Kong Legislative Council from
1978 to 1997 and a senior member of the Hong Kong Legislative Council
from 1988 to 1991. Dr. Lee was also a member of the Hong Kong Executive
Council from 1985 to 1992. He was appointed as the Company’s independent

non-executive director in December 2000.

Mr. Kam Hau Choi, Anthony, aged 39, is the proprietor of a Certified
Public Accountant firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Kam holds a Bachelor of Laws
degree from the University of Wolverhampton, the United Kingdom, and a
Bachelor of Science degree from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Kam is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), a fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (“ACCA”), an associate member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales and an affiliate member of the Hong Kong
Securities Institute. Besides, Mr. Kam is also a member of Task Group in
the HKICPA and a sub-committee member in the ACCA. Mr. Kam has
over 16 years of experience in auditing, accounting and tax matters, both

in private and public companies.
Senior management

Mr. Yu Cheuk Sin, aged 47, is the Managing Director of Quesco Holdings
Limited, QISL and QSL (together, the “Quesco”). Mr. Yu is responsible for
the overall business development and the operations of the Quesco Group.
He has been involved in the IT industry since 1987 and has previously
held important marketing and management positions with several international
IT companies. Mr. Yu spearheads various strategic partnering arrangements
with several international vendors for the pursuit of a number of sizeable

IT project initiatives in the region.

Mr. Yuk Wai Kwok, Simon, aged 40, is the Associated Directors (Marketing
and Sales) of the Group. Mr. Yuk is responsible for business development,
sales and marketing of the Group. He is also in charge of the development
of business co-operation arrangement with vendor and partners in Hong
Kong, PRC, Macau and other overseas market. With 14 years of experience
in project management of IT industry, Mr. Yuk has been involved in the
sales and tendering process for several sizeable IT projects. He was a
project manager of a computer company for 10 years before joining the

Group in December 1999.
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Mr. But Wui Fai, Cyrus, aged 37, is the Associated Directors (Project and
Sales) of the Group. Mr. But is responsible for management of project
commissioning of the Group. With 14 years of experience in IT and RFID
industry on project management, systems design and implementation. Mr.
But had achieved numerous project assignments in government sectors,
public utilities, tertiary institutions and public listed companies. He worked
for 10 years in an IT consultancy company in Hong Kong before joining the

Group in September 2001.

Miss. Yeung Yuen Chun, Mona, aged 31, is the Financial Controller and
Associated Directors of the Group. Miss Yeung is responsible for managing
the Group’s finance and accounting operations, performing statutory and
management reporting. Miss. Yeung has over 8 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and financial analysis. She is an associate member
of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. She graduated from the

Hong Kong Baptist University.

Mr. Lee Kar Kai, Wilson, aged 42, is the Project Manager of QISL. Mr.
Lee is responsible for the project management and account management
of QISL’s development and maintenance projects. Mr. Lee has more than
17 years of solid IT systems implementation experience with more than 10
years focusing on managing projects of different sizes, from small scale to
large scale mission critical systems. He is highly adept in managing project
scope, cost, time, quality, risk and project life cycle from project initiation
and implementation through to project closure and is an expert in using
the proven and well-established IT project management methodologies.
Mr. Lee holds a Higher Diploma in Systems Analysis from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic, and a Diploma in Project Management in Henley Management
College (UK).

Mr. Law Man Kin, Raymond, aged 28, is the Sales Manager of the Group.
Mr. Law has 7 years of experience from the sales and marketing sectors
with specific expertise and strong knowledge of RFID and Smartcard
technologies. Working closely with the Marketing Teams, Mr. Law is
responsible for market analysis and positioning, product management and
delivery and also performed the key strategic alliance management for the
company’s international vendors and corporate clients. Mr. Law holds a
Master of Science in Telecommunications and Bachelor Degree of
Engineering with honours in Electronic Engineering from the Hong Kong

University of Science and Technology.
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Mr. Bat Kwok Kwan, Baker, aged 30, is the Technical Manager of the
Group. Mr. Bat has more than 6 years in depth knowledge and experience
of the RFID and Smartcard technology sectors. With his wealth of hands
on knowledge and experience of the smartcard industry Mr. Bat carries
responsibility for the quality and performance of equipment, projects, product
and technology development for Smartcard and RFID solutions. Mr. Bat
works collaboratively within ITE’s teams to ensure the effective management,
integration and implementation of the company’s complex RFID, smartcard,
hardware and software products and services. Mr. Bat hold a Master of
Science in Computer and Information Technology and Bachelor Degree of
Engineering with honours in Computer Engineering from the University of

Hong Kong.

Mr. Luk Wai Suen, aged 56, is an Senior Consultant of the Group. Mr. Luk
is responsible for advising the system development for new product
development and the design of software system. With 24 years of experience
in R & D of system networking, Mr. Luk was the deputy chief engineer of
an electronics company for 13 years before joining the Group in April 2000.
He holds a degree in Computer Application from The Shanghai Institute of

Education.
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Report of the Directors EEE 2 #H &

The directors submit their annual report together with the audited financial

statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 March

2005.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal

activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to

the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the

operations of the Group during the year ended 31 March 2005 are set out

in note 10 to the financial statements.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2005 and the state

of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 32 to 78.

No interim dividend (2004: HK$Nil) was paid during the year. The directors

do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31

March 2005 (2004: HK$Nil).

Donation

Donation made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$2,000 (2004:

HK$3,000).

Fixed assets

Details of movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in note 11

to the financial statements.

Bank loans and other borrowings

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 March

2005 are set out in notes 20 and 21 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year are

set out in note 22 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors EE= = ) &

Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or the Laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company

to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
Share option schemes

Details of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in note 23 to

the financial statements.

The directors consider that it is not appropriate to disclose a theoretical
value of the share options granted under the Company’s share option schemes
because a number of factors crucial for the valuation cannot be determined,
and, accordingly, any valuation of the share option based on various
speculative assumptions would not be meaningful, but would be misleading

to the shareholders of the Company.

Purchase, sale and redemption of shares of
the company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year.
Major customers and suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases attributable

to the major customers and suppliers during the year is as follows:
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Five largest customers in aggregate RBP4
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Percentage of the Group’s total

LAREEEABEE S
Sales Purchases
HEHE IR
71.67% =
80.59% =
- 13.08%
- 35.91%

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any beneficial

interest in the major customers and suppliers noted above.
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Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in note 24(a) to the financial statements and in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.
Directors

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this

report were as follows:
Executive directors

Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent
Mr. George Roger Manho
Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung

Mr. Liu Hoi Wah

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen
Mr. Tsao Kwang Yung, Peter (passed away on 5 June 2005)
Mr. Kam Hau Choi, Anthony (appointed on 30 September 2004)

Following the death of Mr. Tsao Kwang Yung, Peter, the Company has
only two independent non-executive directors and two audit committee
members which fall below the minimum number of three independent non-
executive directors and three audit committee members as required under
Rules 5.05 and 5.28 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“GEM Listing Rules”) respectively. In this regard, the Company will use its
best endeavour to find a suitable candidate to fill the vacancy as soon as
practicable and will make further announcement upon appointment of an
additional independent non-executive director and audit committee member

in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules.

Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen and Mr. Kam Hau Choi, Anthony will retire from
the board in accordance with Articles 108 and 112 of the Company’s Articles
of Association at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and, being eligible,

will offer themselves for re-election.
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Directors’ service contracts

Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent, Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung and Mr. Liu Hoi Wah
have entered into service contracts with the Company on 1 April 2005 for
an initial fixed term of one year commencing from 1 April 2005 which will
continue thereafter until terminated by three months’ notice in writing served

by either party on the other.

Mr. George Roger Manho has entered into a service contract with the
Company on 23 December 2004 for an initial fixed term of one year
commencing from 1 January 2005 which will continue thereafter until
terminated by three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the

other.

Except for the above, none of the directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year

without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.
Directors’ interest in contracts

No contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party, in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during

the year.
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Report of the Directors EE & 3R &

Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the company or any associated
corporations

As at 31 March 2005, the interests and short positions of each director and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)),
which were notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including any interests and short positions which they have
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to Rule 5.46
of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange were as follows:

(i)

Interests in shares of the Company

EERITBHREBNAE AT HNEE QT
ZBRA7 - HEROREHFRKE

REIZZAF=A=1—H  AREREZRITHEER
BEFNEEAIE15.7RFE15.81KZRE - ARFHHE
RN EE (B R (EH RHIEEA) (REHED) 2
THED 2B - BRI REFP R ZESAR (B
EIRIEEIRD 2 2 EREWR RG22 sk
B BRI ARBEFE DI FEI2GT A FEZET
A SARIRAIZAR AR RIZES.4615FTE0 SRR BH
SARARBEBMARBAARAE ([BAH]) 2wk
KRN

(i) ARBZRDER

Number of ordinary shares

EERRE
Percentage
of issued
Personal Corporate Family Other share capital
Name of director interests interests interests interests Total EERT
T fAARS DRER RikEL HitEs At REBD
Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent - 456,250,348 (L) - - 456,250,348 (L) 50.27%
El it (Note 2) (FizF2)
Mr. George Roger Manho 118,142,254 (L) - - - 118,142,254 (L) 13.02%
B E
Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung - 456,250,348 (L) - - 456,250,348 (L) 50.27%
HEERE (Note 2) (FizF2)
Mr. Tsao Kwang Yung, Peter 100,000 (L) - - - 100,000 (L) 0.01%
BEREE
Notes: Wizt -
1. The letter “L” denotes a long position in the shares. 1. [LIFRRBRHABRE -
2. These shares are beneficially owned by Rax-Comm (BVI) Limited 2. UL ER G B — RN EBEZ BB KL A FRax-

(“Rax-Comm”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent and Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung held 46.21%
and 36.11% of the entire issued share capital of Rax-Comm,
respectively.
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N
(@)

(i) Interests in equity derivatives (as defined in the SFO) (i) REERERZEMRBERMITET B 2
in, or in respect of, underlying shares m (B2 R 58 B ED)
As at 31 March 2005, the directors had the following personal interests RIZZRF=A=1+—0  ARAEFLRIE
in options to subscribe for shares of the Company granted at HK$1 A ERERRERT B LA S T 2 BRI AT REAR
under a share option scheme of the Company. Each option gives AR 2 EIREP B AT 2 B AR - GRE
the holder the right to subscribe for one share. Mt r] iR E ARBE—RARD -

Note:  The letter “L” denotes a long position in the shares. Mzt . [LIFRTFROARE -
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(iii) Aggregate interest in the shares and underlying (i) ARERRD RAEBEIRGD 2 B R
shares of the Company

Note:  The letter “L” denotes a long position in the shares. Mz [LIFRTROARERE -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2005, none of the directors, chief M DuprikEESN  RZETRF=A=+—H &%

executive of the Company or their associates had any interests in the shares TTHARH SR 2 B8 A T ARIR B BRI&I5515.7 ]15.8
or debentures of, or short positions in the shares of, the Company or any RN A TS HE A ABEE AR (& R B HEOI 2 1150
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) BEERMOESZ EEIOAE (BIEREF BRI 2%
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange RERBBIARIEEE 2 RHIKE) - SWBARTIAREE
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or FHHGMEIS2G T UFE 2 &L MR - SiREAIZER £
short positions which they have taken or deemed to have taken under such AR BIZE5.46 6RFTE 2 AR BN A G AR R KBk P2 (E
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of g sox B o

the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules, were required

to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ and chief executive’s rights to acquire
shares or debt securities

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or any Associated Corporations”, as at 31
March 2005, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries was a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors and chief executive of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debt securities, including debentures, of the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the directors and chief executive of the Company
or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe

for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

Substantial interests in the share capital of the
company

The register of substantial shareholders maintained under Section 336 of
the SFO shows that as at 31 March 2005, the Company had been notified
of the following interests, being 5% or more of the issued share capital of

the Company:

N
N

EERTERARBEROIERE S
Z e

BRIA Lt [EE RITBEHN AN AR E R R 2 B -
B REFIOARI TR  R-ETRE=A=
T—H  AAFREMBARES I AR
AEERITHARAEEBALAR RS IEMEARER
Z Bt skERES (BIAESR) MESHE - MARRES
RATHBE SRS 2 BB s E R+ /\BR2 F R EE
AR RBARRES 2R - TMEITE MRS -

AR TR RA 2 EXERS

A BIRIEE BB IEDISE 33615 REF B 2 £ B IR Z AL
NER  RZZERF=A=1+—08 ' LTFREHELRA
AT B TREANE% e LA F 2 43

Percentage
of total
Ordinary issued shares
shares held HERITRG
R R R E AFtEAL
Rax-Comm (BVI) Limited (Note 1) Rax-Comm (BVI) Limited (Ffiz£1) 456,250,348 50.27%
Mr. George Roger Manho (Note 2) BE 1 & (f5E2) 118,142,254 13.02%
Mr. Man Kai Shun XRZSE 55,301,000 6.09%
Notes: BiHsE
1. These shares have been disclosed as the corporate interests of the relevant 1. ZERNER[EERITHAHEN AR BISEE a2’k -
directors in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests BERD REHRKE| B RBERERER Al -
and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company or any Associated Corporations”.
2. These shares have been disclosed as the personal interests of the director 2. ZERNER[EE RITEREN A ARSEE AR 2’

in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company
or any Associated Corporations”.

AR RESFRAR | R ERER Z EARED -
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Five year financial summary

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the latest five years is set out on page 79 of the Company’s

annual report for the year ended 31 March 2005.
Competing interests

As at 31 March 2005, the directors were not aware of any business or
interest of each director, management shareholder and the respective
associates of each that competes or may compete with the business of the
Group and any other conflicts of interest which any such persons have or

may have with the Group.
Audit committee

As required by Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has established an audit committee which comprises three independent
non-executive directors, Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen, Mr. Tsao Kwang Yung,
Peter and Mr. Kam Hau Choi, Anthony, and an executive director, Mr. Liu
Hoi Wah. Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen was appointed the Chairman of the audit
committee. As mentioned above, following the death of Mr. Tsao Kwang
Yung, Peter, the number of audit committee member has fall below the
minimum number as required under Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules
and the Company will find a suitable candidate to fill the vacancy as soon
as practicable. The audit committee meets with the Group’s senior
management and external auditors to review the effectiveness of the internal
control systems. The Group’s financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2005 have been reviewed by the audit committee, who is of the
opinion that such statements comply with the applicable accounting standards,
the GEM Listing Rules and legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures

had been made.
Retirement scheme

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered by an independent trustee. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap

of monthly relevant income of HK$20,000.
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Report of the Directors EE &% &

Board practices and procedures

During the year ended 31 March 2005, the Company has complied Rules
5.34 to 5.45 of the GEM Listing Rules concerning the Board practices and
procedures, which applied before the amendment of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to the Code on Corporate Governance Practices and Rules on

Corporate Governance Report become effective on 1 January 2005.

Compliance with rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the gem listing rules

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings
as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the
year ended 31 March 2005. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
the Directors have complied with such code of conduct and the required

standard of dealings throughout the year ended 31 March 2005.
Corporate governance

In light of changes to the GEM Listing Rules which came into effect on 1
January 2005, the Directors are in the process of reviewing and making
appropriate changes to the Group’s corporate governance practices by

reference to the new Code on Corporate Governance Practices.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all of its independent

non-executive directors are independent.

Auditors
On 4 March 2003, KPMG tendered their resignations as the auditors of the
Company. On 25 March 2003, RSM Nelson Wheeler were appointed as

auditors of the Company by the board of directors to fill in the casual vacancy.

A resolution for the re-appointment of RSM Nelson Wheeler as auditors of

the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
By order of the board of directors

Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent

Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 June 2005
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Report of the Auditors #x £ Bf 3k &

RSM Nelson Wheeler
# A X 8 F B 17
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ITE (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 32 to 78 which have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted

in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and
auditors

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing financial statements
which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting

policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit,
on those statements and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment
of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies
are appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and of the Group,

consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information
and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our
opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides

a reasonable basis for our opinion.
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Report of the Auditors # S & 3R] &

Opinion ER

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the BMRE WBHREREEEA A/ MRE BARKER &
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2005 and SER-_ZTRF=A=T—HZHBRETN BEEE
of the results and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and HEZBILEFEZFERRERE - WERBREBR
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements AR 2 WBREZERE

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler EHR XM
Certified Public Accountants HEGETAD
Hong Kong, 17 June 2005 B ZTTRFASATER
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For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed In Hong Kong dollars)

Consolidated Income Statement & & W= &
BE-SERFE=A=+—B1LFE CUBTHIE)

ANNUAL REPORT 2005 4 # ITE (Holdings) Limited

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 4R & Wz &

| |
1 2005 1 2004
! —ZTREF ! —ZTPUE
| |
Notes : $ $
P 5E ! 7T ! T
| |
Turnover CES 2,10 | 48470321 |, 61,842,809
| |
| |
Cost of services rendered BEIRHARTS < B AS | (41,531,535) | (52,051,430)
Cost of goods sold BEEEMZKA : (1,321,065) : (678,662)
T T
[ 5,617,721 [ 9,112,717
Other revenue H Al 2 : 461,851 : 516,425
Other net loss HihEia#E 3 : (106,586) : (88,035)
Other staff costs Hfh 8 TR | (6,252,448) | (6,760,392)
Depreciation and amortisation e R eH : (1,636,080) : (2,260,196)
Other operating expenses Hibas & Fx2 \ (12,965,029) | (11,837,894)
| |
Loss from operations KB EE : (14,880,571) : (11,317,375)
Finance costs — Interest on bank loans ~ BEMKA —RITER ! :
| |
and overdrafts FESFIE | (728,781) | (721,055)
Loss from ordinary activities BB R EEK : :
before taxation 3] 4 . (15,609,352) | (12,038,430)
| |
| |
Taxation sl 5 ! - ! -
| |
Loss attributable to shareholders e Y ] 8 | (15,609,352) |, (12,038,430)
Loss per share SRER 9 ! !
| |
| |
Basic BN : (1.72 centsfll) : (1.33 centsfll)
Diluted e [ N/A i A [ N/A i
l l
The notes on pages 38 to 78 form an integral part of these financial statements. FI8EF78E M TBRILZEEIBHET 2 — 21



At 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Consolidated Balance Sheet &6 & E a8 & &

R-ZBZERFE=A=1+—8 (ABTINE)

ﬁ

| |
: 2005 : 2004
| —TTRHF I —TEPE
Notes ! $ ! $
fisE 1 T 7T
T T
Non-current assets FERBEE ! \
Fixed assets EE & E 11 1 662,436 | 1,366,125
Goodwill HE 12 I — [ 7,289,408
Investment securities REES 14 : 2,249,670 : 2,484,010
l 2,912,106 |, 11,139,543
Current assets REEE ! :
| |
Trading securities BEEH 15 : 21,670 : 98,750
Inventories FE 16 : 2,059,649 : 2,642,430
Trade and other receivables JFEE M50 % L A R MK R K 17 ‘ 7,406,546 ‘ 15,600,508
Deposits and prepayments e RFEER ! 674,507 ! 640,492
Pledged bank balances AR TN 26(c) : 13,594,808 : 13,584,923
Bank and cash balances RITRIA B4R \ 347,201 ! 1,131,942
| |
1 24,104,381 1 33,699,045
Current liabilities B & & : :
Creditors and accrued charges FERRA R ESTE A 18 : 10,240,889 : 10,743,083
Short term borrowings RHEE 20 : 8,879,949 : 8,923,824
Current portion of long term RABEMRRITERZ ! !
secured bank loan ENEAER A 21 l 416,630 | 1,666,680
T T
[ 19,537,468 [ 21,333,587
Il Il
Net current assets REEETFE : 4,566,913 : 12,365,458
Total assets less current liabilities MEERRHAS l 7479019 | 23,505,001
| |
Non-current liabilities FRBEME : :
Secured bank loan BIRIPRITER 21 \ - \ 416,630
| |
Net assets EEFE : 7,479,019 : 23,088,371
Capital and reserves BEXR#E : :
Share capital &N 22 ‘ 9,075,360 ‘ 9,075,360
| |
Reserves & : (1,596,341) | 14,013,011
Shareholders’ funds BRES [ 7,479,019 [ 23,088,371
l l
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 17 June EFgRN_ETRAF AT EAREREETE -
2005.
Lau Hon Kwong Vincent Cheng Kwok Hung 2ER B0 [
Director Director 2% 5=

The notes on pages 38 to 78 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET #r& & E & MX

FEIBETSAMM BN U T BHRK 2 — 8 °
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For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement i8R &R E X

BE-_ZTRF=A=1+—HILFE GUETIIE

2005 2004
—ZTTREF —ZTENEF
$ $
JC i

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Loss before taxation

Adjustments for:

REXBRESRE

FREERIES 1R
ISR FE

(15,609,352)

(12,038,430)

| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
l l
Depreciation e : 685,288 : 1,309,404
Amortisation of goodwill 7 G : 950,792 : 950,792
Provision for impairment loss R 2 BEBEEE \ \
on goodwill } 6,338,616 } =
Provision for obsolete inventories AR EEE | 280,000 | -
Net unrealised loss/(gain) on trading BAREEIE,EE : :
securities carried at fair value BHAREBEE (W) | 10,080 | (57,040)
Loss on disposals of fixed assets HEBETEEAERE : 113,000 : 160,515
Impairment loss on investment KEAEF 2 BIEEE | |
securities : 234,340 : 238,396
Gain on disposals of trading securities HEEEES 2 W | (32,755) | (33,588)
Dividend income RS2 A : (1,339) : (1,423)
Interest income SN ON | (25,077) | (92,312)
Interest expense ll=E =3z : 728,781 : 721,055
Operating loss before working REEESF TR : :
capital changes K EE ! (6,327,626) ! (8,842,631)
Decrease in trade and other receivables & 4 % L i & U i s 2> : 8,142,958 : 8,092,566
(Increase)/Decrease in deposits Rl RAFEER : :
and prepayments (g : (34,015) : 1,338,127
Decrease in inventories FERD ! 302,781 ! 1,191,361
Decrease in creditors and FEATIR N FE 5 & RRR A : :
accrued charges : (502,194) : (2,027,805)
Cash generated from/(used in) 2WES/ (FTR)ES : :
operations [ 1,581,904 [ (248,382)
Interest paid T B H } (728,781) | (721,055)
Tax refund received B R \ 51,004 \ -
| |
Net cash generated from/(used in) mEEBES (FTA) : :
operating activities e FRE | 904,127 | (969,437)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHHESRE : :
ACTIVITIES ‘ ‘
Purchases of fixed assets HEETEE ! (121,413) ! (647,286)
Purchases of trading securities EEEEES : (188,495) : (155,900)
Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets & EE EE 2 F{S308 ! 26,814 ! 500
Proceeds from disposals HEEEESZAEIE : :
of trading securities ‘ 288,250 ‘ 210,788
Dividend received B E : 1,339 : 1,423
Interest received BUFE : 25,077 : 92,312
Net cash generated from/(used in) REBRBEE (FTA) : :
investing activities REFE \ 31,572 \ (498,163)
| |

ANNUAL REPORT 2005 4% ITE (Holdings) Limited
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement &8 H & R E X

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #Z—TZTHF=A=+—HLFE GUETIIE)

| |
: 2005 : 2004
. TFEEF | —FENF
Note ! $ ! $
B 1 T 7
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEEEESRE [ [
ACTIVITIES 1 1
Increase in pledged bank deposits TR TEZIG N w (9,885) | (73,555)
New bank loans FRITE R } 10,797,714 2,576,948
Repayment of bank loans EEBITER | (14,193,730) | (1,666,680)
| |
Net cash (used in)/generated from mMEES (FTA) : :
financing activities ELXREFE | (3,405,901) 836,713
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERRSEEYRD ! !
CASH EQUIVALENTS 1 (2,470,202) | (630,887)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ROA—BZHRER ‘ ‘
AT 1 APRIL ReZEY } (662,723) | (31,836)
T T
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R=EA=+—HZERE [ [
AT 31 MARCH RESZEY | (3,132,925) | (662,723)
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF ReERRSEEYER : :
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2B ‘ ‘
Bank and cash balances BITRBSER l 347,201 1,131,942
Bank overdrafts RITIBX 20 ! (3,480,126) ! (1,794,665)
| |
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R=ZA=t+-B2ES 1 1
AT 31 MARCH RESZEY ‘ (3,132,925) | (662,723)
l l
The notes on pages 38 to 78 form an integral part of these financial statements. E38E7SHMHITBR NS ERE T — 35 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #R& RES K
BE-STAS=A=T—AILEE GUETHIE)

|
: Reserves
\ i
: Share : Share I Merger I “
: capital : premium : reserve : Accumulated :
[ (note22) | (note 24(b)) | (note 24 (c)) | losses [ Total
L BRE | BRGERE | AHHE |
| (MsF22) v (MIEE24(b) o+ (fI5E24(c) ' BEEHR &t
| | | |
| | | | |
| $ | $ | $ | $ | $
! 7! 7! 7T T T
| | | | |
Balance at 1 April 2003~ A-TE=% l l l l l
mA—H | 9075360 | 22816249 | 10748910 |  (7.513718) | 35,126,801
| | | | |
Loss for the year NEFER } - - - | (12,038430) | (12,038,430)
T T T T T
Balance at 31 March 2004 R -ZZ4F [ \ \ \ |
SA=t-R&% | 9075360 |, 22816249 | 10,748,910 | (19,552,148) | 23,088,371
| | | | |
Loss for the year rEEEA l . - - | (15609352) | (15609,352)
Balance at 31 March 2005 A=ZTTHE : : : : :
ZA=t—8&% | 9075360 | 22816249 | 10,748910 | (35161500) | 7,479,019

The notes on pages 38 to 78 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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At 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Balance Sheet — The Company EE& & & — &2 7

R-ZBZERFE=A=1+—8 (ABTINE)

Iﬁl

| |
1 2005 1 2004
! —ZEERF ! —ZETMF
| |
Note : $ : $
P 5 ! Tt ! Tt
| |
Non-current assets FRBEE : :
| |
Interests in subsidiaries W B A R 2 s 13 l 7,739,951 |, 23,453,241
| |
| |
Current assets MENEE ‘ ‘
| |
| |
Other receivables L fth fE IR 5K 17 : 139,703 : 26,374
Bank and cash balances RITRIR B 5% w 2,041 \ 3,872
| |
: 141,744 : 30,246
| |
Current liabilities RENEE | I
| |
| |
Accrued charges and other payables FEET & A IR EL At FE 1S IR 5K 18 ! 402,676 ! 395,116
| |
Net current liabilities B ETE } (260,932) | (364,870)
T T
Net assets BEEFE \ 7,479,019 \ 23,088,371
| |
Capital and reserves BEXR#EE : :
| |
Share capital A 22 l 9,075,360 | 9,075,360
Reserves G 24 : (1,596,341) : 14,013,011
| |
Shareholders’ funds BRES | 7,479,019 | 23,088,371
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 17 June EEERTETREANA T EAZKERFRETE -
2005.
Lau Hon Kwong Vincent Cheng Kwok Hung 25EKH R 1
Director Director o= 5=

The notes on pages 38 to 78 form an integral part of these financial statements. FIBET7BEMMFBR L EN BT 2 — &0 °
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ANNUAL REPORT 2005 4% ITE (Holdings) Limited

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Statements of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAPs”)
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”).
A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the

Group is set out below.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is historical cost as modified by the revaluation of trading

securities.

Impact of recently issued Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards

HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“new
HKFRSs") which are effective for accounting periods beginning on

or after 1 January 2005.

The Group has not early adopted these new HKFRSs in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2005. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new HKFRSs
but is not yet in a position to state whether these new HKFRSs
would have a significant impact on its results of operations and

financial position.
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For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& #R & K 5%
HE—

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 March. The
results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated income statement from the effective
date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as

appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the

Group are eliminated on consolidation.
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company that is controlled by the Company.
Subsidiaries are considered to be controlled if the Company has
the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating

policies, so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less any impairment losses. The results of a subsidiary
is accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received

and receivable.
Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated

depreciation and any impairment losses.

The cost of fixed asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure relating to a
fixed asset that has already been recognised is added to the carrying
amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits,
in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the
existing asset, will flow to the Group. All other subsequent expenditure

is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2005 4% ITE (Holdings) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf # #R & K 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives as follows:
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 4 years

Furniture and fixtures 4 years
Computer and other equipment 4 years

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of a fixed
asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are recognised

in the income statement on the date of retirement or disposal.
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s share of the
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired as at the

date of the acquisition.

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is amortised to
the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life. Goodwill is stated in the consolidated balance
sheet at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment

losses.
Investment securities

Investment securities, which are securities held for an identified
long-term strategic purpose, are stated at cost less any impairment
losses. The carrying amounts of individual investment securities
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess whether the fair
values have declined below the carrying amounts. When a decline
other than temporary has occurred, the carrying amount of such
investment securities is reduced to its fair value. The amount of the

reduction is recognised as an expense in the income statement.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B %% $& 3% Bt &%

BE-ZTRF=A=1+—HILFE CVETIIE)

FESETBEER (@

Bl EENITE (B

BEEEZMERRBEENAIMBFER - UELAREHH
A E o BULERA 2 BA A BERET ¢

HEMERE 7O & 5 FH B A A
(ARFEE B 2E)

RIS E kS

Bk EAMR PO

HRER N ERBEEEMELE 2 Bm AN EMSFRAER
EeE M ERETE - YRBERXHEE ARKRER
RHER ©

5]

I

REBHBARIMEL < BB RN S A Y 2 K
REASERECBAUHREELBBEZAAEBELZ
R o

R BB AR AEE 2 BB AERERE G ATES
FHERS W R EH - BB AMEHIREMRIR
BELEAREBRESEEERBRIIR -

REES

BREBLSEIARKRIIR A CEFRE - WIRAANRIE
MREBRREEBEAR - REZIREEDNSEEAEH
wal > ARHE AR EELSTERIREE o 3R IERE
BT ZEEBFZRHAERRDEERAEE - Mt
R TE R0 B B E IR s SR M8 o



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& #R & K 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #Z—TTHF=A=+—HILFE CAUBTIE)

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Trading securities

Trading securities are stated in the balance sheet at fair value on
the basis of their quoted market prices, on an individual investment
basis. Changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement
as they arise. Securities are presented as trading securities when
they were acquired principally for the purpose of generating a profit

from short-term fluctuations in price or dealer’'s margin.
Impairment of assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to identify indications that any assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer

exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is charged to the income statement in the period in which it

arises.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its net selling
price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a

cash-generating unit).

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is
reversed only if the loss was caused by a specific external event of
an exceptional nature that is not expected to recur, and the increase
in recoverable amount relates clearly to the reversal of the effect of

that specific event.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2005 4% ITE (Holdings) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf # #R & K 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of amortization or
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of impairment losses is credited to the

income statement in the period in which it arises.
Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated on the first in first out basis and comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in

bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the

estimated costs necessary to render services or make the sales.

When inventories are consumed in rendering services or sold, carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period when
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable
value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories

recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
Service contracts

Contract revenue on the rendering of services represents the agreed
contract amount. Costs of rendering services comprise labour and
other costs of personnel directly engaged in providing the services

and attributable overheads.
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For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& # 3= Mt 5=
BE_TERFE=A=+—HILFE UETHIE)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Service contracts (continued)

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised based on
the percentage of completion of the transaction, provided that the
revenue, the costs incurred and the estimated costs to completion
can be measured reliably. The percentage of completion is established
by reference to the costs incurred to date as compared to the estimated

total costs to be incurred under the transaction.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are

anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is treated

as an amount due from contract customers.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as

an amount due to contract customers.
Trade receivables

Provision is made against trade receivables to the extent they are
considered to be doubtful. Trade receivables in the consolidated

balance sheet are stated net of such provision, if any.
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable

on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf # #R & K 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of assets remain with the leasing company are accounted for as
operating leases. Rentals applicable to such operating leases are
charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the

lease term.
Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to

settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities

unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses

are dealt with in the income statement.

On consolidation, the balance sheet of overseas subsidiaries
expressed in foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date whilst the
income statement is translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates. The resulting translation differences are

dealt with as a movement in reserves.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& #R & K 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #Z—

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits

will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,

on the following bases:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Service revenue

Service revenue comprises revenue from smartcard systems,
radio frequency identification (“RFID”) and information
technology and related service contracts, and electrical and

mechanical installation work and related service contracts.

Service revenue is recognised on the percentage of
completion basis, as further explained in the accounting policy

for “Service contracts”.

Consultancy fee income

Consultancy fee income is recognised when the services

are rendered.

Income from maintenance services

Income from maintenance services is recognised on a straight

line basis over the term of the maintenance service contracts.

Income received or receivable in respect of services which
have not been completed on or before the balance sheet
date are shown in the balance sheet as deferred maintenance

income.

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised on the transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the goods are delivered and the title has

passed to the customers.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf # #R & K 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(v)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis,
taking into account the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive

payment is established.

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

ANNUAL REPORT 2005 4% ITE (Holdings) Limited

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans, including contributions payable under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are

recognised as expenses in the income statement as incurred.

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees

up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or paternity

leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

The financial impact of share options granted under the share
option scheme is not recorded in the Company’s or the Group’s
balance sheet and no employee benefit cost or obligation is
recognised until such time as the options are exercised. Upon
the exercise of share options, equity is increased by the
amount of the proceeds received. Options which are cancelled
prior to their exercise date, or which lapse, are deleted from

the register of outstanding options.
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For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& #R & K 5%
HE—

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is
engaged either in providing products or services (business segment),
or in providing products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and

rewards that are different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, the Group
has chosen business segment information as the primary reporting
format and geographical segment information as the secondary

reporting format.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment. For example,
segment assets may include inventories, trade receivables and fixed
assets. Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and liabilities are
determined before intra-group balances and intra-group transactions
are eliminated as part of the consolidation process, except to the
extent that such intra-group balances and transactions are between
group enterprises within a single segment. Inter-segment pricing is

based on similar terms as those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the
year to acquire segment assets (both tangible and intangible) that

are expected to be used for more than one year.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate assets,

interest-bearing loans, borrowings, corporate and financing expenses.
Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group has
the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise
significant influence over the party in making financial and operating
decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group and the party are subject
to common control or common significant influence. Related parties

may be individuals or other entities.

~

ZERF=A=+—HBILFE GUETIE

FESFTBER (&)

BN

ok

Pk e

SR BEBRLENBEER LIRS EBHE) &
PERETE 2 S B IR PSR 4 G SRS (A8 05 8F) F
SH - BTS2 B R BB 5 5 A PR -

REAKBEARHBRS 2N AEEEBAXRED
MeRETARIBERSHBA - MEEHD MRS
FRI IR EE o

DEWE X ¥E - BERABEREVTEERRER
K—DH2EE  AREAMEEIASIEER DAL EZD AP
2B - Iy MEEFABEFE - BRUIRKREEE
E - MERGEEHERFZ—80 @ BRIERFEERN
RHTBRRA— DAz EEEE - TRD KRS 5
i*%%*ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁzu#ﬁﬁﬁlm$ 2 545 34
AIFESL DR ZEEBTHZREHR T EMINRA LT ZHE

IRREE °

DEBEAAXSRUBERLERRER —EFE 2D
MEEBWRBVEE) FAMEL ZBKE -

AOEHBE X2 ERUBREREE  SHEER B8 -
tEMBEER -

REEA T

IMRANEBEHE R SRR EER — T ATHE S —TTA
ZWW&W%RﬁﬁEEXZ%gﬁ'ﬁ%—EAi%
S S B AR SR B S N ER B 2 B 7 B A 8RR
ﬁiﬁz%ﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁ%%@w—ﬁAiﬁﬁﬂﬂmﬁz
ERSHRZERTET  AMALIIRERTEE M
BAL o FEALAARMERALHEMEL -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B %5 3% R fff & | ANNUAL REPORT 2005 4 #§ ITE (Holdings) Limited



ANNUAL REPORT 2005 4% ITE (Holdings) Limited

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year as adjusted
for items which are non-assessable or disallowable. Hong Kong
profits tax is provided at the rate prevailing for the year based on
the assessable profit for the year less allowable losses, if any, brought

forward.

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. Taxation rates enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date are used to determine deferred taxation. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences

can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that

the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred taxation is charged or credited to the income statement,
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity,

in which case the deferred taxation is also dealt with in equity.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B %% $& 3% Bt &%

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R 3= Mt 5=
BE-SERF=A=+—B1LFE GCUETHE)

FESETBEER (@

FiI8

BIATMRIBEREE - WBARV R TERRER EH
HBIEEE - BRNEHR LA BARTOE N IR F AT
KW HREAA LBRZRBERRETH -

ERERARBEERBRABEINTEEERBEMR
RN ERPERRIREERE < T RN 2 808E -
BIETIRER AN A E B AT E RS BB 2 TR -
fird B & FE AR T8 A AT R SHE IS = 2 - B S HRIRT
BIREE °

BERIATIRR B RR MERRARSELEZRE
EECERERMELEE  EEHEREREE2
BrfE - B AR RA AR e @ & BIBR SN

EER AR WS R NRAR » BRIFEZ BRI
IARZERER  EUHBERT - BEHIRIRIIER
RERHE o



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& #R & K 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #Z—TTHF=A=+—HILFE CAUBTIE)

2. Turnover and revenue EXF R K=
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The RATZ EBEBRFEER - WBARZEEXHT
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the R B |RRMF13A °

financial statements.

The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised in ER - SEEEHREERAAKEZSBOT

turnover during the year is as follows:

| |
} 2005 } 2004
! —TThHEF ! ZEEE
| |
| |
| $ $
! JC ! 7T
| |
Turnover = £ : :
Provision of smartcard systems, RFID B RES - 5148 ! :
| |
and information technology services #pll N B F R AR 75 | \
— Service revenue — BR AU as } 5,354,658 | 12,592,776
— Income from maintenance —RERBFUA ! !
| |
services | 2,442,608 | 2,755,186
— Sales of service related products — S RIS E & : 2,045,254 : 1,089,242
| |
| 9,842,520 | 16,437,204
Consultancy fee income FERS & AU A : 38,541,801 : 44,534,191
Service revenue from provision REBELTETREY ‘ ‘
of electrical and mechanical PR 75 e : :
installation work : 86,000 : 871,414
| 48,470,321 |, 61,842,809
| |
| |
Other revenue Hobzs w w
Interest on bank deposits RITIEEFIE, l 25077 92,312
Dividend income A& BUA : 1,339 : 1,423
Other income E U A | 435,435 | 422,690
L |
} 461,851 516,425
T T
[ 48,932,172 [ 62,359,234
l l
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf # #R & K 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #HZ=—ZZRAF=A=+—AHIFE CABTIE)

3. Other net loss Hi g5 8% E
| |
: 2005 : 2004
\ —ZTTHF I —TTEF
| |
| |
| $ | $
\ 7T [ 7T
| |
Exchange loss & 5 : (16,261) : (18,148)
Gain on disposals of trading securities HEEEES 2 Wa | 32,755 | 33,588
Net unrealised (loss)/gain on trading BRAREBEIIRZEEES : :
securities carried at fair value REW (B8 W FE ! (10,080) 1 57,040
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEREEE ZEE : (113,000) : (160,515)
w (106,586) | (88,035)
| |
4. Loss from ordinary activities BRBiAT BB 2 EiE
before taxation
Loss from ordinary activities before taxation is arrived at after charging: FrELRT B E #2152 BEE bk :
| |
: 2005 : 2004
! —EZEREF ! eSS
| |
| |
| $ | $
| T | T
| |
Amortisation of goodwill R } 950,792 | 950,792
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEE & : 335,000 : 281,746
Cost of inventories FEKA | 3,113,420 I 3,455,268
Depreciation e 1 685,288 1 1,309,404
Impairment loss on goodwill PR R EEE \ 6,338,616 \ -
Impairment loss on investment securities KREFBSH RERE : 234,340 : 238,396
Operating lease charges: minimum lease  K2HEER : HEWE : :
payments for hire of properties ZEBEHEE | 1,173,388 | 1,874,000
Provision for obsolete inventories BRFE 2B : 280,000 : -
Provision for doubtful debts RIREEAE ‘ 173,053 ‘ 497,713
| |
Staff costs including directors’ PREEEE KRN | |
emoluments and retirement benefit BBl : :
scheme contributions Z BT | 47,195,092 | 56,114,267
l l
Note: Cost of inventories sold includes provision for inventories of Mizt: BEFRERABEFEREHEL280,000T (ZETWEF «
approximately $280,000 (2004: $Nil) which is included in the amount &) WEFEREEELXHAFEBIRKE -

disclosed separately above for the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& #R & K 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5.

Taxation

(a)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax and overseas profits
tax is required since the Group has no assessable profit for

the year.

The taxation on the Group’s loss before taxation differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the applicable

tax rate of the Group as follows:

BiE

(b)

BE-ZERF=A=+—HIFE CAUETIIE)

HAAREFERL EERVEH - Y BHRE

ABHEHIBINIGTERE -

AEBEBRHRABRZHBRIRERBENE

BB RTE 2B RmeBEIT ¢

| |
: 2005 : 2004
\ —TThHEF \ —TTF
1 1
| s L
| 7T w TT
Il Il
Loss before taxation R A58 | (15609,352) | (12,038,430)
Tax at the applicable tax rate BEERTE 2 Bi1E : (2,851,481) : (2,250,685)
Tax effect of income that is TS TE FE AR Tt 4 A R : :
not taxable in determining AT AZ B2 I |
taxable profit 1 - (36,929)
Tax effect of expenses that are PATEE TE & FR A5 Vi A B N AT ! !
not deductible in determining BRI 2 B & : :
taxable profit ! 1,426,605 ! 194,175
Tax effect of unused tax losses RIER R ABAFIEERE : :
not recognised 2T E : 1,968,418 : 2,837,121
Tax effect of prior year's tax FREAZRIBERE \ \
losses utilised this year BT E } (543,542) | (743,682)
Taxation charges WHIEE : — : _
l l

The applicable tax rate represents the weighted average of
the rates of taxation prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions

in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary
differences and tax losses carried forward due to uncertainty
of realisation of the related tax benefit through the future
taxable profits. The tax effect on temporary differences and
unrecognised tax losses was approximately $7,862,000 (2004:
$5,240,000) as at 31 March 2005.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B % $& 3% Fff &%

(c)

BRAMERRBEAEE 2 EHEEE @R EN

®Z MEFHH -

3B A 18 2 FE R I 3R 2 A8 B B0 7% A1
WA BTE - BB = E KRR RLIE
BREZEEHBEEEELER R=2TZH
FZA=1t-—"H EREZERAEIRHEES
Bz MG 2E47,862,000T (ZTZTPF :

5,240,0007T) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2005 “F# ITE (Holdings) Limited



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf # #R & K 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #HZ=—ZZRAF=A=+—AHIFE CABTIE)

6. Directors’ emoluments EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules RIRBIZEIR £ AR Al R BB (A RERGID £ 1616 E 2
and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as EEPSFFIBOT ¢
follows:
| |
: 2005 : 2004
| —ZTTRF \ ZZTPYF
: $ : $
| |
[ 7T | 7T
Fees e ! 505,000 ‘ 480,000
Basic salaries, allowances K& - ERL : :
and other benefits K H Az ! 1,851,949 : 1,774,452
|
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRAERIFT B | 39,930 | 39,600
! 2,396,879 ! 2,294,052
| |
The executive directors, Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent, Mr. George REBEEZZTTAF=A=1+T—RHILFE  HTEFZ
Roger Manho, Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung and Mr. Liu Hoi Wah received HhAE - BEHEE  BEBELEERRZIGELE - D
emoluments of $633,383 (2004: $579,484), $549,483 (2004: I E 633,383 (ZZZ Y4 : 579,484 T) * 549,483
$579,484), $633,383 (2004: $579,484) and $75,630 (2004: $75,600), 7T (ZZZ P4 : 579,4847T) © 633,383 L (—Z=MY
respectively, for the year ended 31 March 2005. % : 579,4847T) * }&75,6307L (ZZZ U4 : 75,600
7o) Z B & o
The independent non-executive directors who are also the members REBEZ-ZETHEF=A=1+T—"RHILFE  EFWeE
of Audit Committee, Mr. Kam Hau Choi, Anthony, Dr. Lee Peng REBRFERDFIR =B IR TEEREZLZES
Fei, Allen and Mr. Tsao Kwang Yung, Peter received directors’ fees KREBREFLEE FBRELREERLE - DRI
of $25,000 (2004: Nil), $240,000 (2004: $240,000) and $240,000 #%025,0007T (ZZZ 04 : ) » 240,00070 (ZTF
(2004: $240,000), respectively, for the year ended 31 March 2005. PO4F : 240,0007T) £2240,000 0 (ZZZPU4F : 240,000
TL) 2 & o
The emoluments of the directors (executive and independent non- PITHEBIENTES 2N T T3 EE
executive) is within the following band:
| |
: 2005 : 2004
I —TThHEF \ ZEEE
1 1
: Number of : Number of
[ directors [ directors
} EEHA EEHA
T T
$Nil — $1,000,000 Z£7c—1,000,0007T [ 7 [ 6
l l
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& #R & K 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #Z—TTHF=A=+—HILFE CAUBTIE)

6. Directors’ emoluments (continued) EEME (&
During the year, no emoluments were paid to the directors as an FRN - ARBETEREEZNME - EAXBRSEMA
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation REE - siERIMARE B2 RE kBB AE -

for loss of office.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed FAZESTHEFLERNEERESRZREEMAME
to waive any emoluments during the year. ZEHE o

7. Individuals with highest emoluments BEESEFHAL
The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group for RAMNZSFALH  BMU(CETHF  T) AE
the year included two (2004: none) directors, details of whose = CHHB N (ZTTEF : A B AT ZHE
emoluments are presented above. The aggregate of the emoluments MR ¢

in respect of the remaining three (2004: five) highest paid individuals
are as follows:

| |
: 2005 : 2004
w —TTREF w —TTWNEF
| |
} $ $
| 7 | 7z
| |
Basic salaries, allowances ¥ - 2R RHE AR : :
and other benefits : 2,038,290 : 4,038,894
Retirement benefits scheme RURREAIFT SR | |
contributions } 36,000 60,000
T T
[ 2,074,290 [ 4,098,894
l l
The emoluments of the remaining three (2004: five) individuals are = (ZETWF : Af) ZeF AT ZMEN T T3
within the following bands: #HE
| |
: 2005 : 2004
\ —TThHEF \ —TTF
Il Il
: Number of : Number of
[ individuals [ individuals
} ABC N -
T T
| |
$Nil — $1,000,000 27T —1,000,0007C 1 g 4
$1,000,001 — $1,500,000 1,000,0017t—1,500,0007T [ - [ 1
| |
During the year, no emoluments were paid to the five highest paid FRN - ARBVER ARSI A LTINS - EA
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or B EMARER - SfERINAZSE B 2 225 B i
as compensation for loss of office. e -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf # #R & K 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8. Loss attributable to shareholders

The consolidated loss attributable to shareholders includes a loss
of $15,609,352 (2004: $7,858,910) which has been dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company.

9. Loss per share
(a) Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to shareholders of $15,609,352 (2004:
$12,038,430) and the weighted average of 907,536,000
ordinary shares (2004: 907,536,000 shares) in issue during

the year.
(b) Diluted loss per share
No diluted loss per share is presented for the year as there

were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence during

the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& #R & K 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #Z—TTHF=A=+—HILFE CAUBTIE)

10.

Segment reporting

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business
and geographical segments. Business segment information is chosen
as the primary reporting format because this is more relevant to
the Group’s internal financial reporting.

(a) Business segments

The Group comprises the following main business segments:

O
(@]

7 EbER &
ERAEE 2B RELIEH2FI S HER - AREE

BUEBOBZ I AERIERSHA - ERETER
MAEE 2 NI BRE -

(@) ZEBEED

Smartcard systems,
RFID and information
technology services

Consultancy services

Electrical and mechanical :

installation

The provision of smartcard
systems, RFID and
information technology
services.

The provision of information
technology consultancy

services

The provision of electrical and
mechanical installation work
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H

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10. Segment reporting (continued)

(a) Business segments (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf # #R & K 5%

BE-ZTRF=A=1+—HILFE CVETIIE)

7 EBERE ()

(a) ZFEBSD (B

Smartcard systems,
RFID and information

technology services Consultancy

| |
| |
| |
| |
: BRERS  SURRA services
‘ REAR KR ‘ [ & AR 75
| 2005 |, 2004 |, 2005 |, 2004
, ZETRF | ZTTWNF | ZETRF | ZTTOEF
T T T T
| $ $ $ $
| JT T T T
TURNOVER w2m I ? I ?
| | | |
Sales to external SNRES \ ! \ !
customers ZIHE I 9,842,520 ' 16,437,204 | 38,541,801 ! 44,534,191
RESULTS ES [ I I [
| | | |
Segment results DEFELE I (7,592,804) : (11,582,217) ' 3,661,487 : 3,924,620
Unallocated corporate RTHBEAA] : ‘ : ‘
revenue Yoz : : : :
Unallocated corporate RTHBELAA] : | : |
expenses 2 | | | |
Loss from operations KRR ; I ; :
Finance costs BhE AR | | | w
Loss before taxation e Al 518 ; | ; |
Taxation sl I w | w
Loss attributable AR E( \ | \ |
to shareholders &8 \ ! \ !
ASSETS EE [ [ \ \
| | | |
Segment assets DEEE I 17,799,153 | 25,670,840 ' 7,848,932 ! 9,102,274
Unallocated corporate RTDE ! : ! :
assets BE : ‘ : ‘
Consolidated total EAm : : : :
assets AE : | : |
LIABILITIES a1 | l l 1
| |
Segment liabilities HEALE : 7,441,599 | 6,208,557 : 7,796,936 | 8,837,768
Unallocated corporate RTHHE | ! | [
liabilities afs [ I [ [
Consolidated total ran | \ \ \
liabilities afs I ! I !
OTHER INFORMATION H &R I ‘ [ [
| | | |
Capital expenditure = &N : 76,568 : 453,323 ! 44,845 : 3,443
Depreciation and FER : ‘ : ‘
amortisation 5 ‘ 505,433 | 965,745 151,276 | 290,939
Impairment loss REEE ‘ 234,340 238,396 | - =
Provision for inventories 17 &% | 280,000 - - -
Non-cash expenses BEXRFRE | \ | \
other than depreciation, A (e - ! ‘ ! ‘
amortization and o ROR(E ! ! ! !
impairment loss EBRRIN) 1 - : - 173,053 : 497,713
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& #R & K 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #Z—TTHF=A=+—HILFE CAUBTIE)

Electrical and

| |
| |
‘ mechanical ‘
: installation : Consolidated
| E |
‘ ZEIR ‘ =E
| 2005 |, 2004 |, 2005 |, 2004
 ZETRF | ZTTWE | ZTERF | ZTTEF
! $ $ $ $
| JT | TT T 7T
TURNOVER Prr ! ? I ?
| | | |
Sales to external INAK ! ‘ ! ‘
customers S ! 86,000 ! 871,414 | 48,470,321 ' 61,842,809
RESULTS ES ! ! ! !
| | | |
Segment results D IE | (715,987) | (161,962) | (4,647,304) | (7,819,559
Unallocated corporate AT DEATF : ‘ : ‘
revenue g 25 : : : 461,851 | 516,425
Unallocated corporate RTHEAF] | | \ |
expenses &M \ [ | (10,695,118) | (4,014,241)
Loss from operations @ gsia I { | (14,880,571) | (11,317,375)
Finance costs BB AR | | | (728,781) | (721,055)
Loss before taxation BiAiAsE ! | | (15,609,352) | (12,038,430
Taxation FIE \ [ \ = | =
Loss attributable BR R FE(E | | \ |
to shareholders wia w w | (15,609,352) | (12,038,430)
ASSETS BE ‘ ‘
| |
Segment assets DEBEE : 843,958 2,023,905 ' 26,492,043 36,797,019
Unallocated corporate RTHE : ‘
assets BE } | 524,444 8,041,569
Consolidated total REHE : :
assets BE : , 27,016,487 | 44,838,588
LIABILITIES B 1 1
Segment liabilities DEBRE : 446,574 1,121,116 : 15,685,109 16,167,441
Unallocated corporate RTHE \ [
liabilities =k [ I 3,852,359 5,582,776
Consolidated total kRE 18 \ \
liabilities =k ‘ I 19,537,468 21,750,217

OTHER INFORMATION  Hfth&:H#}

| |

| |

Capital expenditure EAREY : = = !
Depreciation and TER : :
amortisation #3H : = = |
Impairment loss RIEEE | = =
Provision for inventories 17 &#& & | = = |
Non-cash expenses BARERE | |
other than depreciation, B (GF & - ! !
amortization and BEH ORI E ! :
impairment loss BRI : = -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf # #R & K 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #HZ=—ZZRAF=A=+—AHIFE CABTIE)

E

10. Segment reporting (continued) BB E (8]
(b) Geographical segments (b) IRAEE I E
The Group participates principally in Hong Kong, the PRC AEBEFEERBMPEARLAME ([HE])
and other locations. LA Bo HL At 30 5 48 & ZE 75 o
In presenting information on the basis of geographical IR i 25 BRI - HERATIRE P
segment, segment revenue is based on the geographical FrEsEl D - HEBEERERMAX TIIREE
location of customers. Segment assets and capital expenditure FrfE i &l 5 o

are based on the geographical location of the assets.

| | | |
: Hong Kong : The PRC : Other locations : Consolidated
| £ \ HE \ Aot s \ Ga
I I I I
T T T
L5 0405 0 20042005 1 A4 A0 1 2004
| 3TEF | CTIMF 1 CERRE | CTIMF 0 CIRRE | CTERE . CIERE | CTENS
| | | |
T T T T
R
| i 7 % i % % %, %
| | | |
T T T T
Revenue from REHNR : ! : ! : ! : !
| | | |
external customers 2Rk | 46284277 | 59,220,903 | 887,153 | 1,317,495 | 1,298,891 | 1,304,411 | 48470321 |, 61,842,809
Segment assefs S9EE | B4 4| 30T easme)| 15233 S| 20648 4458568
Capital expenditure ERELH ! w ! w ! w ! w
incurred during BEE : : : : : : :
the year ‘ 116,262 | 406,308 ! 5132 1 240,978 ! - - 121414 1 647,286
| | | | | | |
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For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11.

~O

BE-ZERF=A=+—HIFE CAUETIIE)

Fixed assets BEE&EE
The Group & [E
| | |
: : Computer :
[ [ and other |
: Leasehold : Furniture equipment :
improvements' and fixtures BRR ‘ Total
| | |
| HEYEEE | KAREE HihkE &t
| $ | $ $ ! $
| JT | JT JT | JT
| | |
Cost JZ:S : : :
| | |
At 1 April 2004 R-EEWEmA—H | 380,126 |, 572,353 |, 3,636,899 , 4,589,378
Additions RE ! - 1,736 119,677 | 121,413
| | |
Disposals/Written off HE D | - | (103,316) (271,899) |  (375,215)
At 31 March 2005 R=BTRF=F=F—H | 380,126 | 470,773 | 3484677 | 4335576
Accumulated depreciation 25178 : : :
| | |
| | |
At 1 April 2004 R-_ZBZpmEmA[—H w 44721 1 397,152 1 2,781,380 | 3,223,253
Charge for the year FRE L 134,162 | 84,684 466,442 | 685,288
Disposals/Written off HE AH : - : (62,586) (172,815) : (235,401)
At 31 March 2005 W-—ZTTRE=A=+-A , 178,883 , 419,250 , 3,075,007 , 3,673,140
Net book value I [ FHE : : :
| | |
At 31 March 2005 R-BEBAF=A=+—H | 201,243 | 51,523 409,670 | 662,436
At 31 March 2004 R-ZEME=F=+—8 | 335405 | 175201 855,519 | 1,366,125
| | |
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For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #HZ=—ZZRAF=A=+—AHIFE CABTIE)

12. Goodwill GEES
| The Group
\ rEE
|
|
‘ $
[ JT
|
Cost R :
|
At 1 April 2004 and at 31 March 2005 R-BEENFNNA—ARR _TEERAF=A=1+—H : 9,507,923
Accumulated amortisation E=Yi g E |
|
|
At 1 April 2004 R-ZZTWFENY A/ —H : 2,218,515
Charge for the year TN | 950,792
At 31 March 2005 R-EERF=A=1+—H : 3,169,307
Provision for impairment loss WEEEZEE :
|
|
At 1 April 2004 —ETNFMA—H [ =
Charge for the year E R : 6,338,616
|
At 31 March 2005 R-EERF=A=1+—H I 6,338,616
Net book value IREEE :
|
At 31 March 2005 R-ZEZERE=A=1+—8 } =
|
At 31 March 2004 R-EZMF=A=+—H I 7,289,408
13. Interests in subsidiaries RMB AT 2=
|
: The Company
[ VNN
|
T
} 2005 ‘ 2004
| ZERRE | —REAF
|
T
l $ $
| T 7T
| T
Unlisted shares, at cost FE LT (RAKAS) | 4,000,000 ‘ 4,000,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSHT B A R 5B : 26,014,876 : 26,415,710
T T
I 30,014,876 I 30,415,710
Impairment loss BEEE : (22,274,925) : (6,962,469)
T T
[ 7,739,951 [ 23,453,241
| |
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& #R & K 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #Z—TTHF=A=+—HILFE CAUBTIE)
13. Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

Details of the subsidiaries at 31 March 2005 are as follows:

R 2 Rz s ()

RZBZRF=A=+—H HMBRARZFEHOT :

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Percentage
of equity
attributable to

Nominal value
of issued and
paid up ordinary/
registered capital

RRERRBSAR QA

development projects
LR EFAB B RS
FEEIE B

| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
l l l l
: and operation : the Company : ERITRAZE :
Name : A LB : NSS! L BERERAS Principal activities
=18 : Fd bk : Pt iR 4 : HES : FEEW
: : : Indirect : :
| | o mE |
ITE (BVI) Limited  , The British Virgin | L - US$20,000 | Investment holding
' Islands | } | 20,000%7 | RAER
[ [ ! [ [
ITE Smartcard : Hong Kong : : 100% : $3,418,336 : Provision of smartcard
Solutions Limited | &% i ‘ i 3,418,336t |  systems and related
BERGER AT : : : : | services and sales of
: : : : : smartcard related products
: : | : | REEEEER RS LAERBERT
| | } | | AREEEREFHERER
I I I I I
ITE Engineering ' Hong Kong : . 100% : $2 | Provision of electrical
Limited : BB : : : 27T : and mechanical
| | \ | | installation services
| | } | | RUBRERTRES
I I I I I
ITE Investment : Hong Kong : : 100% : $2 : Investment holding
Limited | B | : | 27 | REZER
I I I I I
RF Tech Limited : Hong Kong : : 100% : $2 : Manufacture and research
| BB \ ‘ \ 27t | of smartcard system
: : : : : related products
: : : : : EERAFTEERES
[ | ! | \ HERAZE
| l | l |
Rainbow Spirit I Hong Kong ! I 100% ! $2 | Dormant
Limited | B l l | T | EBEEE
BYEERARAT : : : : :
| | | | |
Quesco Information : Hong Kong : : 100% : $2 : Commission of turnkey
Services Limited : BB : : : 27T : computer systems
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
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13.

ANNUAL REPORT 2005 4% ITE (Holdings) Limited

Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R 3= Mt 5=
BE-SERF=A=+—B1LFE GCUETHE)

RTE ARz s (&

Place of

incorporation/

registration

Percentage
of equity
attributable to

Nominal value
of issued and
paid up ordinary/
registered capital

| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| and operation | the Company | ERTRAZE
Name : o R 3z B2 : PN : ZERBA : Principal activities
=18 ! R B ! Pt iR A ! ZRES ! FEEK
| | | |
T
l l ' Indirect l
| | . R |
I I I I I
I I 1 I I
ITE (China) Limited | The People’s | I 100% | US$700,000 | Provision of smartcard
BRI RS RS : Republic of China : : : 700,000 7T : systems and related services
ABRAT I \ : \ | IR B R R AT R ABRA AR TS
(note a) (Ffita) | | | l
I I I I I
I I I I I
Global Confidence | The British Virgin | I 100% US$10 | Investment holding
Limited " Islands | l | 10%57 | REZR
| REEXEFS ! : ! !
| | | |
I I I I I
Capital Ledger : The British Virgin : : 100% : US$54 : Investment holding
Limited | lIslands I ‘ I 54T | WAER
| RERKRS | l l i
I I I I I
|
Quesco Holdings : Hong Kong : I 100% : $5,000,000 : Investment holding
Limited holding | &% | } | 5,000,0007 | &K
RIS EIERAR AT | | [ | \
I I I I I
I I | I I
Quesco Systems I Hong Kong ! : 100% ! $6,500,000 ! Provision of information
| | | |
Limited | BB | \ | 6,500,000z |  technology consultancy services
FER 2 GORR R | | | | | RGE R R
BRAA ! i \ | |
| | I | |
| | | | |
BERIEE 3K8) : The People’s : : 100% : $600,000 : Not yet commenced business
BRAF] | Republic of China | | | 600,0007C | AFIAEZE
(note b) (Rfitb) | s | l l l
| | | | |
ITE (Macau) Limited : Macau : : 100% : MOP25,000 : Not yet commenced business
B R (RP) | R 1 } 1 250008170 | RFEHES
BRAA [ [ [ [ \
l l | l l

and repayable on demand.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& #R & K 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #Z—TTHF=A=+—HILFE CAUBTIE)

o

13. Interests in subsidiaries (continued) BB A B 2 (4

Notes: B o

EBMYEESEZREBRABIA—REINERE - KEH
B0 RZZEZ—F A=+ NHEMW °

(a) ITE (China) Limited is a wholly owned foreign enterprise with an (a)
operating period of 20 years expiring on 26 June 2021.

REEM OB BRARIA—REIELE - REHR15
FORZE-NFOHA+TNBER °

(b) FERLEUE (B08) B R A A is a wholly owned foreign enterprise with (b)
an operating period of 15 years expiring on 18 April 2018.

14. Investment securities REXZS
|
[ The Group
! REH
|
i 2005 ] 2004
: —TThHEF : —TTE
|
: $ ‘ $
| T 7t
| |
Unlisted investment, at cost IEETIREES (R A) ! 2,830,189 . 2,830,189
Less: Impairment loss R (EEE : (580,519) : (346,179)
‘ 2,249,670 ‘ 2,484,010
| l
15. Trading securities BEEES
|
[ The Group
! TEH
|
i 2005 ] 2004
: —BFERF ‘ —ZTPUEF
|
! $ ‘ $
! 7T : 7T
| |
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, BB LTRAES (ZmE) ! :
at market value ‘ 21,670 ‘ 98,750
l l
16. Inventories =FE
|
[ The Group
! REH
|
! 2005 ] 2004
: —TThHEF | —TTYF
| $ $
1 JC \ JC
Raw materials BAR ! 1,003,752 | 1,292,980
Work in progress R m ! 37,089 \ 39,980
Finished goods SR m : 1,018,808 ! 1,309,470
1
! 2,059,649 [ 2,642,430
| ]
As at 31 March 2005, the carrying amount of inventories that are RZZETRAF=A=1+—0 BT TIHFEUTEIR

carried at net realisable value amounted to $Nil (2004: $Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf # #R & K 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #HZ=—ZZRAF=A=+—AHIFE CABTIE)

17. Trade and other receivables PE U R H il FE WUNR X
: The Group : The Company
! REE ! ARAF
| |
T T
| 2005 | 2004 | 2005 | 2004
| ZTTRF | —FTTWNF | —TTRF | —TITEF
| |
| |
1 $ | $ | $ | $
i T | T T | 7
| |
| |
Trade receivables, net KR SIER CFE) | 4,620,621 | 6,615254 - -
Other receivables L th & IR 51 ! 501,523 : 971,730 | 139,703 : 26,374
Gross amount due from FEWE = 2 BR 1% : | : \
customers for service BRI TIERIE : : : :
contract work — note 19 #BEE— 1519 1,979,994 1 7,058,899 | - -
Retention money receivables EWIRES : 304,408 : 954,625 : - : -
| T | T
| 7,406,546 1 15,600,508 | 139,703 | 26,374
l l l l
The Group has a policy of allowing its trade customers with credit REEZHERF G THES TP —HKNMFI30HZE60
period normally between 30 days to 60 days or terms in accordance HZEEH  RBRHESRZIEK - RERBHFE
with contracts. The ageing analysis, based on invoice date, is as HIRE DT
follows:
: The Group : The Company
[ TEH ‘ PN
| |
T T
2005 | 2004 , 2005 | 2004
| ZRRRF | —BEEF | —BRRF | —FTEF
| |
| |
} $ | $ | $ | $
! T T ! T T
| | | I
| |
Within 1 month —fEARN | 2,552,186 | 4,521,734 = =
1 month to 3 months —Z=={@A I 1,115,256 : 814,692 ! — : —
| |
More than 3 months but iE =& A | | | |
less than 12 months BAR+=MEA | 744,021 1 979,240 | - -
More than 1 year but less HRE—F | | | \
than 2 years B R REF | 209,158 |, 299,588 | - -
T T T T
I 4,620,621 | 6,615,254 | - -
| | | |
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For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-ZERF=A=+—HIFE CAUETIIE)

o~
(@)

18. Creditors and accrued charges BRI ESTEA
: The Group : The Company
\ AEE \ NG|
| |
T T
2005 | 2004 , 2005 | 2004
| —FTRF | —FTINF | —FTTERF | —FTINF
| |
T T
1 $ $ $ | $
i T 7T T 7
| |
Trade payables BB SRR | 844,016 | 1,306,657 -1 -
Accrued charges and EEtEBER R ! : : :
other payables E b fE IR 5K : 6,485,699 : 7,792,317 : 402,676 : 395,116
Gross amount due to FERTE 8 PR TS : | : |
customers for service SR ITIZHIA | : w :
contract work — note 19 4eE8 —[5E19 : 1,856,284 | 486,071 : = [ =
| |
Deferred maintenance income  JEEREHRA I 726,936 | 794,634 i - -
Retention money payable EHRES . 327954 | 363,404 - -
T | T |
I 10,240,889 | 10,743,083 | 402,676 | 395,116
| ] | ]

Included in creditors and accrued charges are trade payables

FENIRAR N EF B R ERENESIRFIZERAHHE

with the following ageing analysis: HIRE DT
: The Group : The Company
! EE ! ARAT
| |
T T
| 2005 1 2004 , 2005 | 2004
| —ZFERE | —TTWE | —TTRF | —TTWE
| |
I T I T
I $ $ $ $
— | — = | —
: T, 7 T, 7T
| T | T
Within 1 month —@AA [ 270,117 | 250,168 | -1 -
1 month to 3 months —Z=f@A | 206,370 | 299,696 | - -
More than 3 months but BB =1EA ‘ ! ‘ !
| |
less than 12 months BLR+=(@A 207,097 11,986 - -
More than 1 year but B —F : : : :
less than 2 years BLRRE | 4,980 | 744,807 | - =
More than 2 years BB RAE | 155452 - - =
T T T T
| 844,016 1 1,306,657 | — =
l l l l
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For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #HZ=—ZZRAF=A=+—AHIFE CABTIE)

19. Service contracts in progress EITPZRBEN
|
\ The Group
! rEEH
|
! 2005 { 2004
: —EZEREF | e kS
|
| $ $
1 JT | 7T
Cost incurred plus attributable profit BB AR INFE(S 5 ! ;
less foreseeable losses WAATER 2 B8 ! 15,259,012 | 24,555,115
Less: Progress billings W EE N R : (15,135,302) | (17,982,287)
! 123710 | 6,572,828
l L
Gross amount due from customers for FEWE P 2 BRIS & #) T 12 ! |
service contract work — note 17 RIBAERE — MIzE17 [ 1,979,994 w 7,058,899
Gross amount due to customers for FERTE P 2 BRISE #) T 12 ‘ !
service contract work — note 18 TIEAERE —[fi5E18 : (1,856,284) | (486,071)
|
: 123,710 ! 6,572,828
l
20. Short term borrowings MNHIEE
|
\ The Group
! rEEH
|
i 2005 ] 2004
‘ —EERF : e
|
‘ $ ‘ $
‘ T T
| |
Secured bank loans — note 26 HIEARIRITER —M7E26 ! 5,399,823 ‘ 7,129,159
Bank overdrafts — note 26 RITHE S — 5526 : 3,480,126 : 1,794,665
‘ 8,879,949 ‘ 8,923,824
| l
21. Long term secured bank loan REABIEFERITERN
|
! The Group
: rEE
! 2005 { 2004
} —TTAHF : —TTE
: $ $
| JC | JC
Interest bearing borrowing BMBZER : I
Secured bank loan — note 26 HERIRITE R —FI7E26 ‘ 416,630 | 2,083,310
Less: Current portion R BNERER 1D : (416,630) | (1,666,680)
Non-current portion JERNEAER (D I - ; 416,630
The secured bank loan is BEBIBITERZ : ‘
repayable as follows: BRAT | |
| |
Within one year —F RN I 416,630 I 1,666,680
In the second year F_F [ — [ 416,630
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FoFEZERF : - ! -
|
: 416,630 ! 2,083,310
l
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For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #Z—TTHF=A=+—HILFE CAUBTIE)

22. Share capital B 2
T T
: Number of :
\ shares \ Amount
| B | &8
l l $
1 1 7
Authorised: TERERRA : :
Ordinary shares of $0.01 each BREEO0.017TH & B : 2,000,000,000 : 20,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BT REUERRA : :
At 1 April 2004 and 31 March 2005 RZZZWMFMNA—H K ‘ !
—ETRFE=A=+—H : 907,536,000 : 9,075,360
l |
23. Share option schemes BARRESTE
The Company adopted a pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre- RARIRZEE—F A+ -AFEM— B LEMAIZER
IPO Scheme”) and a post-IPO share option scheme (the “Post-IPO #eEtEl ([ EmaistEl]) k—18 EmE RS ([ £
Scheme”) on 12 February 2001. In addition, the Company adopted m&EsrEl) - RZZTZTZFNANA » ARAHEMH=
a 2002 share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”) on 8 August 2002, TR CFRERESS (2222658 MRARRIE £
and the Pre-IPO Scheme and the Post-IPO Scheme were MATETEI R EM&ETEl o fr LT ATET &l R _ EThEETEIR
simultaneously terminated. Upon termination of the Pre-IPO Scheme 1Ef2 - DS ERBIL AT ER 2 EBIRAE o M ARTITE
and the Post-IPO Scheme, no further options may be offered ZHERRHRE - S MIRETEIEBE AN o EThATETEIR ETH
thereunder. However, in respect of the outstanding options, the TR AR TR < FEAR P EAE B 75 R rZ P IE AT EITR (i -
provisions of the Pre-IPO Scheme and the Post-IPO Scheme shall BIER EMBRAUNE—FT=FER =TT _FEHF TR
remain in force. The outstanding options granted under the Pre- 2 B RITR BB ARAE 2 (EAATRTK ©

IPO Scheme and the Post-IPO Scheme shall continue to be subject
to the provisions of the Pre-IPO Scheme and the Post-IPO Scheme,
respectively, and the provisions of Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing
Rules and the adoption of the 2002 Scheme will not in any event

affect the terms in respect of such outstanding options.
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For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #HZ=—ZZRAF=A=+—AHIFE CABTIE)

23. Share option schemes (continued) BARERTE (&)
(a) Pre-IPO Scheme and Post-IPO Scheme (a) ETRIEHEIN ETigEtEl
As mentioned above, the Pre-IPO Scheme and the Post- AERE - EmAiGtEI R EmEFER T
IPO Scheme were terminated on 8 August 2002 and no further ZFENANBRLE - BTSRRI EBEITER
options may be offered thereunder. Details of the outstanding T REIAEARITE 2 BREZ BN ¢

share options of these schemes during the year are as follows:

|
: Number of share options
\ EREHA
|
T T T T
: Outstanding | [ [ | Outstanding at
' at1 April 2004 | Exercised | Lapsed | 31March 2005
Name or category : R=ZZME | Granted during | duringthe | duringthe | R-ZFRF
of participant : MA—A : the year : year : year : =A=+-H
BERERERER . HATE 0 FRARE 0 FRfTE 0 EREXR 1 HRTE
| | | |
Pre-IPO Scheme ! : : : :
LAl } ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘
| | | | |
Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent/Director | 6109440 | - - ~ 1 6109440
Zgx,/ £% | : : : :
|
| I I I I
| I I I I
George Roger Manho/Director | 4000000 | - _ ~ | 4,000,000
BifeiE /£ % ‘ w w w w
| | | |
: I I I I
| I I I I
Cheng Kwok Hung/Director | 4,000,000 | - - - | 4,000,000
BEf TS | \ \ | |
| | | |
: I I I I
| I I I I
Liu Hoi Wah/Director | 19,112,640 1 - - - 19,112,640
Ell=Eg = \ [ [ [ [
| | | |
: | | | |
| | | | |
Lee Peng Fei, Allen/Director : 1,760,000 : - : - : - : 1,760,000
ﬂﬂ%ﬂ/§$ | | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
Employees I 35,167,920 ! - | - ! - : 35,157,920
- I I I I
EE | | | | !
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
T T T T T
| 70,140,000 | - - - | 70,140,000
| | | | |
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& #R & K 5%

BE-ZERF=A=+—HIFE CAUETIIE)

“E2F\A=+-BE
—T—%ZAt—H

| | | |
: : : Price per : Market
| | | shareto |  value per
: : : be paid : share at
| | | onexercise | date of grant
: : : of options : of options
Name or category ‘ ‘ Period during | TEBRER | RHBRE
of participant : Date granted : which options exercisable : AXffz : EAZ
RERERERER | RiAH | SRR BT . BRER | RBTE
Pre-IPO Scheme [ [ [ [
LA } } } }
| | | |
Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent/Director | 12 February 2001 | 21 August 2001 to } $0.095 | N/A
D Ve | —EE-—E-f+=A | 11 February 2011 | 0.0957C | TER
| | TE-EN\A-t-RE | }
[ \ —Z——%-A+—H \ [
George Roger Manho/Director | 12 February 2001 | 21 August 2001 to 1 $0.095 | N/A
ek E2 | —EBE-E£-A+-H 11 February 2011 | 0.0957% | TEA
| | ZFF-F\A=+-BE | }
\ \ —T—%ZAt—H \ \
Cheng Kwok Hung/Director : 12 February 2001 : 21 August 2001 to : $0.095 : N/A
LGl 4 | —EEZ-—%-F+=H | 11 February 2011 | 0.0957T | NER
! I ZZZ-FNA=t+—-HE !
| | —®—£-ff-B | l
Liu Hoi Wah/Director : 12 February 2001 : 21 August 2001 to : $0.095 : N/A
eE B8 . —EZ-%-R+-H ‘ 11 February 2011 : 0.0957 | TiEA
: I ZZZ-FNAZ+—-HE !
| . -E——%-Bt-8 l
Lee Peng Fei, Allen/Director I 12 February 2001 I 21 August 2001 to ! $0.095 | N/A
SBR,/EE | ZET-#-F+-B |, 11 February 2011 } 00957 | TR
: I ZZEZ-FNAZ+—HE ! !
1 | SF-—FZAf-R 1
Employees I 12 February 2001 I 21 August 2001 to ‘ $0.095 ! N/A
8 | —E2-#-A+-A |  11February 2011 } 00957 | il
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
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For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23. Share option schemes (continued)

(a) Pre-IPO Scheme and Post-IPO Scheme

(continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf # #R & K 5%

BE-ZTRF=A=1+—HILFE CVETIIE)

BT E (@

(a)

LT RTE 8 R ETiRETEI ()

Number of share options

|
|
|
! BREZA
|
T T T T
: Outstanding | [ [ | Outstanding at
| at1 April 2004 | Exercised | Lapsed | 31March 2005
Name or category : R=ZZME | Grantedduring | duringthe | duringthe | R-ZFFRF
of participant | mA-B | theyear year : year | ZA=t-H
|
RERERLZRER , o EERfTE 1 FRBE 1 FRTE 1 FRAR 1 HRTE
4 | | | |
Post-IPO Scheme ! : : : :
L 1 ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘
| | | |
: | | | |
Employees | 5082000 | - - | 5032000 | -
€8 } ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘
| [ [ [ [
| | | |
: [ [ [ [
Employees | 6756000 - -, 6756000 -
EE | [ [ [ [
| [ [ [ [
| [ [ [ [
| [ [ [ [
| | | |
Employees : 2,000,000 1 - - - 2,000,000
= | | | |
&5 : [ [ [ [
| I I I I
| I I I I
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| 13,788,000 | - - 1 11,788,000 | 2,000,000
l l l l l
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& #R & K 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #Z—TTHF=A=+—HILFE CAUBTIE)

“EIMELA-AE
~3——4t-A=t-8

| | | |

: : : Price per : Market

[ [ \ shareto |  value per

: : : be paid : share at

| | | onexercise | date of grant

: : : of options : of options
Name or category ‘ ‘ Period during | TEBRER | RHBRE
of participant : Date granted : which options exercisable : AXffz : EAZ
RERERERER | Rt A | IREAT . BREK | RBEHE
Post-IPO Scheme ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘

| | | |
LH#E | I \ !

| | | |

| | | |
Employees I 10 April 2001 I 10 April 2002 to ! $0.455 | $0.455
8 | ZET-FmAtH | 9 April 2004 | 04557 | 04557

! [ k11 = ! !

| | | |

| | Z?@EEE H jL H | |
Employees : 11 October 2001 : 11 October 2002 to : $0.35 : $0.3
E& (S R = w 10 October 2004 w 0.357T | 0.37T

| | e — | |

: . “EE-F+A+-RE ‘ ‘

: I ZEEREFATH ! !
Employees | 28 December 2001 | 1July 2004 to l $0.195 $0.195
(= | ZET-Ft-A-HAR | 31December 2011 1 01957 | 0.1957C

| | | |

| | | |

| | | |

| | | |

| | | |

| | | |
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ANNUAL REPORT 2005 4% ITE (Holdings) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R 3= Mt 5=
BE-SERF=A=+—B1LFE GCUETHE)

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Share option schemes (continued)

(b)

2002 Scheme

The Company operates the 2002 Scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the 2002 Scheme include the
Company'’s directors, including independent non-executive
directors, other employees of the Group, suppliers of goods
or services to the Group, customers of the Group, advisers
and consultants, etc. The 2002 Scheme became effective
on 8 August 2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled or

amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2002 Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the 2002 Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company within any 12-month period, is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this

limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or a
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on
the price of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant)
in excess of $5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject

to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.
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(b)

—EE —FtE

ARBET_ZTT_F58 EERHAKE
EBIERI B ERE A ERERHRE NEE -
—TE_FFHAERERERRARES AP
BREUIFNITES AEEHEMES Em
MR HER TP - BR% - —TT_F5F
AR _TF_FN\A/NBBER - FRWEUHK
BN BIRENE BEF +FREM -

FRATEEPTA WARTTE < B R HBRAERBIKIT
EZARRB-_FT_F 3 R BERE S
2B - HEIT2IRMEB TNEBEARK
NEITREZ30% - REM+_@AHRR - &
RNE| T T F5H 8 AR E AL IR B 8
BUABEREARL ZBNEE  EES LR
RABERDEITRMZ1%  EFEBHIL ER
ZHBBRERL - ARRRRS KRR

RESE - THAR - R RBREKEEFKHF

RHOBRE  AFREKBIIERITESLLE -
BEAN - BRABARERRER - ARBUIFRTES

SETAKHMR G 2 BERE - NMER+ =@
AHAZNRRIRND 20.1%HEBE (RREE
BRARERMERAE SRABEET  BRER
REERRALAE ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #Z—TTHF=A=+—HILFE CAUBTIE)

N

23. Share option schemes (continued)

(b)

2002 Scheme (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer upon payment of a nominal
consideration of $1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and
ends on a date which is not later than 10 years from the
date of the offer of the share options or the expiry date of
the 2002 Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of the
offer of the share options; (ii) the average closing price of
the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value

of the share.

B ARSI (&)

(b)

—TT S ()

ERTREREEURREERRDBREN —+—
AR BB -T2 REAEREXBRE -
BRHBREZTERRABEET  RELH
— R HIARG - W R AR BB AE A B+
FAZE  HREE R_ZTT_FHEIH

EIZE4 e

BREZTEERVBESETE - EETEE
RTAESE : (i) RRROHEBRERLEB
ZUT(E ¢ (i) R AR GO AR 5 i B EART A (&
RHBZFHWRME  R(i) RO EE °
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For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #HZ=—ZZRAF=A=+—AHIFE CABTIE)

H

23. Share option schemes (continued) AR REST & ()
(b) 2002 Scheme (continued) (b)y =TT _FF3IE
Details of the outstanding share options of the 2002 Scheme RERNMARITEZ —_EE S48 BREZ
during the year are as follows: B ¢

Number of share options

|
|
|
i BRAYE
|
T T T T
: Outstanding | [ [ I Outstanding at
' at1 April 2004 | | Exercised |, Lapsed | 31March 2005
Name or category | W-2FME Grantedduring ~ durng = duing | R-FREF
|
of participant | MWmA-H | theyear | theyear | theyear | =ZHA=t-—H
| | | |
BEREXEZRER : HWARTE | FARE | FRTE | FRER¥ | HROE
Employees [ 3,500,000 : - : - : - : 3,500,000
|
EE | [ [ I I
| I I I I
| | | |
: | | | |
An Employee " 6,400,000 - _ ~ | 6,400,000
EE\ | | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
T T T T T
[ 9,900,000 | - - - 9,900,000
| | | | |
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For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #Z—TTHF=A=+—HILFE CAUBTIE)

| | | |
: : : Price per : Market
[ [ I shareto | value per
: : : be paid : share at
: : : on exercise : date of grant
| | | ofoptions | of options
Name or category : : Period during | TEBRER | RUBRE
of participant \ Date granted | which options exercisable |  EXffz | ERZ
REMERERER l SRR l BREG N . SRER | ROPE
Employees I 9 August 2002 I 9 August 2003 to ! $0.175 | $0.175
g8 | ZEE-EN\BAB ., 8August2012 L oAE , 0475%
| | ZEE=F\ANRE 1
w w —Z-——#\ANR ! !
An Employee | 9 August 2002 | 9 February 2003 to l $0.175 | $0.175
EE : —ZTZ-#\ANA : 8 August 2012 : 0.1757C : 0.1757C
\ | ZEE=F"AnBZE \ \
| sk VPN } }
T T T T
| | | |
| | | |
At 31 March 2005, the number of shares outstanding and RZZBZRF=A=+—H ' LmAlEE - L
issuable under the Pre-IPO Scheme, the Post-IPO scheme MEFTE KT _F5 A BT 2RNEE
and the 2002 Scheme were 70,140,000, 2,000,000 and 2 5I£A70,140,000 * 2,000,000 29,900,000 °
9,900,000, respectively.
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends BAEY &R TRAARIRERRRRAE
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. WEZRER]
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For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R 3= Mt 5=
BE-SERF=A=+—B1LFE GCUETHE)

24. Reserves i
(@)  The Company (a) ARH
: Share : :
[ premium [ [
: note (b) : Accumulated :
! & 43 7% F ! losses ! Total
| | |
: () : 2\|ER A&t
| $ $ i 5
} T T %
Balance at 1 April 2003 R-ZET=4F ! ! !
mA— B | 22,816,249 | (944,328) | 21,871,921
| | |
| | |
Loss for the year RNEFEE | = | (7,858,910) | (7,858,910)
Balance at 31 March 2004 RZZTTMF : : :
=ZA=+—RH#%& | 22,816,249 (8,803,238) | 14,013,011
| | |
| | |
Loss for the year REE/HAE | - 1 (15,609,352) |  (15,609,352)
1 1 1
Balance at 31 March 2005 R-ZTZTREF 1 1
=A=+—H#&% [ 22,816,249 | (24,412,590) | (1,596,341)

(b) The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Company’s articles of association and the Cayman
Islands Companies Law, which provides that the share
premium account may be applied in making distributions or
paying dividends to members, provided that immediately
following the date on which distribution or dividend is proposed
to be paid, the Company will be able to pay its debts as

they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

(c) The Group’s merger reserve represents the difference
between the aggregate of the nominal value of the share
capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation completed on 18 November 2000 over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued

in exchange therefor.

(d) At 31 March 2005, in the opinion of the directors, the
Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
of the Company, comprising share premium account, net of
accumulated losses, amounted to $Nil (2004: $14,013,011).

ANNUAL REPORT 2005 43 ITE (Holdings) Limited | NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 #% $& 3% B &

(b) RIPEEREMRIARNR ZABZIZAA -
INRFREHERBIEMMRE o ZFHEXREK
1738 B R AT P 1E M AR 29 R 3k S~ AR CR AR,
HEZBERZAINDIRIBEZANRE » AR
ANBRENERRRGERETINEHNEE

(c) ARBZAHRBEER-_ZZETFE+—HATN
AAKBEEAR  ERAZENEEBLBE
RipmETROEE

(d) HEZZTTRF=A=+—0 EZTRAELD
AHSIRTFAR Tﬂﬁﬁﬁzéﬁﬁ(ﬁ%ﬁx{’ﬁ;ﬁ{%;ﬁi
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For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #Z—TTHF=A=+—HILFE CAUBTIE)

25.

26.

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
scheme operated by an approved MPF trustee for its staff in Hong
Kong. All eligible staff and the Group make mandatory contributions
in compliance with the requirements of the Mandatory Provident

Fund Schemes Ordinance.

The subsidiaries operating in the PRC are required to participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes, organised by relevant local
government authorities for the staff in the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to make contributions to the retirement schemes at

certain rates of the basic salary of their employees in the PRC.

The Group’s retirement costs charged to the income statement for
the year were $1,570,486 (2004: $1,920,043).

Banking facilities

At 31 March 2005, the Group had general banking facilities granted
by banks to the extent of approximately $15.6 million (2004: $18.5
million). The facilities were secured by the following:

(a) corporate guarantees executed by the Company;

(b) personal guarantees executed by three directors of the

Company;

(c) the Group’s fixed deposits of $13,594,808 (2004:
$13,584,923).

~N
N

RIKERIETE

AEECERERBREMSZE-RRHEATES ([8E
1) FTE - FHetElm UG EZ BREREAEE -
FrE & BB TAARKEDARRHIEAED A &
2 #E SA BIHEEK

AARFE 2 B R REE MBTHEERE REE
B2 THRERNHRGE - B QRIRRHEABRK
FTEIREZMEANEEEARATEELERZHRK -

REBERAFEE T AN R ZRIRK A A1,570,486 7T
(ZZZ N4 : 1,920,0437T) °

R-TZTRF=-A=1+—08 AEBERTREZ K
$R1TAVE ££4915,600,000 T (ZZZ U4 : 18,500,000
JC) ° RE Z T ¢

(a) ARABZEERF:

(b) ARF=ZFEZBZEAER:

(c) ZAN&EE A%013,594,8087T (- EZ M4 ¢
13,584,9237T) 2 T HATFK °
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27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

ANNUAL REPORT 2005 4% ITE (Holdings) Limited

For the year ended 31 March 2005 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-ZTRF=A=1+—HILFE CVETIIE)

Lease commitments HERE
At 31 March 2005, the Group’s total future minimum lease payments RZZZRFE=A=+—0 ' AEEREEBMEZT
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties are AIEEIEEEEmM AR B {§§1TZE—1EWE‘§?KIEZZDT :
payable as follows:
| |
: 2005 : 2004
! —ZTTRF [ —ZTYF
: $ : $
| |
| 7T | 7T
Within one year —FNRN ‘ 1,308,922 ‘ 1,083,103
After one year but within five years —FRAFA : 195,158 : 1,513,278
| 1,504,080 [ 2,596,381
l l
Contingent liabilities HAREE

At 31 March 2005, the Company has undertaken to guarantee certain
banking facilities granted to two wholly-owned subsidiaries to the
extent of $15.6 million (2004: $18.5 million).

At 31 March 2005, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities (2004: $Nil).

Related party transactions

Three directors of the Company have provided personal guarantees
to the Group in relation to general banking facilities of $8 million
(2004: $8 million) granted to the Group.

Ultimate holding company

The directors consider the ultimate holding company at 31 March
2005 to be Rax-Comm (BVI) Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors
on 17 June 2005.
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Five Year Summary & F#i &

Assets and liabilities BEHEE

| | | | |
1 2005 1 2004 1 2003 1 2002 1 2001
I ZETRF 0 ZZEE@EF 1 ZTE=F% | ZTE=F | ZTT—F
| | | | |
| | | | |
| $ | $ | $ | $ | $
I T | T | T | T | JT
| | | | |
Results ES : : : : :
Turnover E X | 48,470,321 | 61,842,809 , 77,301,806 , 62,848,428 | 45,669,195
T T T T T
(Loss)/Profit from mE (B8 /&7 : : : : :
operations | (14,880,571)1 (11,317,375)1 (20,798,775)! 5,280,406 | 19,070,287
| | | | |
Finance costs AR A | (728,781) | (721,055) | (582,385) | (142,724) | (7,862)
I I I I I
(Loss)/Profit from ordinary BBiAIAE£HL : : : :
activities before taxation  (E518) /%7 | (15,609,352)  (12,038,430)  (21,381,160), 5,137,682 & 19,062,425
Taxation A | = - 167,399 | (303,802) | (2,800,000)
| | | | |
(Loss)/Profit attributable AR &5 (B518) /| ! ! ! :
| | | | |
to shareholders Al | (15,609,352), (12,038,430); (21,213,761); 4,833,880 | 16,262,425
| | | | |
Earnings per share Sk (F58) /BF : : : : :
Basic BN | (1.72 cents fll) | (1.33 cents fl) | (2.34 cents fl)| 0.53 cents fll | 2.01 cents fll
Diluted 3 : N/A RiEH : N/A TNEF | (2.28 cents fl) : 0.50 cents 1l : 1.99 cents Il
| | |
| | |
| | |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
T T
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |

|
|
N |
Fixed assets BEEE 662,436 | 1,366,125 | 2,189,258 | 3,292,969 1,616,853
Goodwill EL ~ | 7,289,408 , 8,240,200 , 9,190,992 -
Investment securities REES 2,249,670 | 2,484,010 | 2,722,406 , - -
Net current assets MEEEFE 4,566,913 = 12,365,458 & 24,058,247 = 43,901,763 51,725,572
T T T
Total assets less BEAERTBDERE ! ! :
| | |
current liabilities 7,479,019 1 23,505,001 | 37,210,111 | 56,385,724 53,342,425
Non-current liabilities FRBEE - (416,630)1 (2,083,310)1 - (3,293)
| | |
7,479,019 | 23,088,371, 35,126,801 , 56,385,724 53,339,132
Share capital A | 9075360 | 9075360 | 9,075,360 ' 9,079,960 | 4,490,680
Reserves B | (1,596,341)1 14,013,011 | 26,051,441 | 47,305,764 | 48,848,452
| | | | |
| | | | |
. 7,479,019 | 23,088,371 | 35,126,801 | 56,385,724 | 53,339,132
| |
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Executive Directors

Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent CEO
George Roger Manho COO
Cheng Kwok Hung CTO

Liu Hoi Wah CFO
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EEHE SE0E
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Lee Peng Fei, Allen CBE, BS, FHKIE, JP
Kam Hau Choi, Anthony AHKSI, FCCA, FCPA

BYFHITES
ZH5 ¢ CBE, BS, FHKIE, JP
=81 AHKSI, FCCA, FCPA

Company Secretary and Qualified Accountant
Liu Hoi Wah ACA, CPA

AEMERESERSTE
2752 ACA, CPA

Compliance Officer BRI {E

Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent B3N

Authorised Representatives EEREK

Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent £l

Liu Hoi Wah g

Audit Committee EREER

Lee Peng Fei, Allen Chairman R EFF

Kam Hau Choi, Anthony e

Liu Hoi Wah g

Auditors X B ~
RSM Nelson Wheeler EEBAEDFTRITT
Certified Public Accountants B

7th Floor, Allied Kajima Building HH4TE1385%

138 Gloucester Road BAEBERNETTE
Hong Kong

Principal Bankers ERERBIT
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited AR LBESRITAERAT
The Bank of East Asia, Limited REBRITAERAA
Registered Office EfHEE

Century Yard, Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT
George Town, Grand Cayman
British West Indies

Century Yard, Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT
George Town, Grand Cayman
British West Indies

Head Office and Principal Place of Business
Units 1717-20, Level 17, Tower |

Grand Century Place

193 Prince Edward Road West

Mongkok, Kowloon

Hong Kong

BREERE T T B
BEBNE
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Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 513 GT

2nd Floor, Strathvale House

North Church Street, George Town

Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands

British West Indies

FTERGBFERE

Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 513 GT

2nd Floor, Strathvale House

North Church Street, George Town
Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands
British West Indies

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Hong Kong Registrars Limited

46th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
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BB ET
E/EREE1835%
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Hong Kong

Website Address 493t
www.hkite.com www.hkite.com
Stock Code B
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